
Town of Altavista, Virginia
Meeting Agenda Town Council
Town Council Regular Meeting

Tuesday, July 12, 2022
6:00 PM - Council's Chambers

510 Seventh Street
Altavista, VA 24517

 

1. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Pastor David Sage, Grace Community Church, will deliver the Invocation this evening.

2. AGENDA ADOPTION

3. RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

3.A TOA Personnel Changes During June 2022

4. CITIZEN'S TIME (NON-AGENDA ITEMS ONLY)
Citizen’s addressing Council should provide their name and residential address. Citizen’s comments are
limited to three (3) minutes, with a total of fifteen (15) minutes allotted for this purpose. (Please note:
Citizen’s Time is NOT a question-and- answer session between the public and Council.)

5. PARTNER UPDATES

5.A Altavista Area Chamber of Commerce

5.B Altavista On Track Updates

6. CONSENT AGENDA

6.A FY2022 Budget Amendments / Departmental Transfers

6.B TOA Monthly Financial Reports - June 2022

6.C Town Council Meeting Minutes

6.D English Park "Beverage" Vending Machine

6.E Resolution of Purchase - Addition to McMinnis Springs

6.F Utilities Purchase Resolution - from CCUSA for DFBMC

 

 

 

 

 Attachment. JUNE 2022 New Hires, Departures, and Milestones

 

 

 

 

 

 Attachment. Memo to Council: FY2022 Budget Amendments/Dept. Transfers

 Attachment 1. June 2022 Check Register
Attachment 2. June 2022 Revenue Report
Attachment 3. June 2022 Expenditure Report
Attachment 4. June 2022_Reserve Balance / Investment Report

 Attachment 1. Town Council RM 4.12.22
Attachment 2. Town Council Work Session 4.26.22
Attachment 3. Town Council RM 5.10.22

 

 Attachment. Resolution 6.28.22-Tardy property purchased for McMinnis Springs

1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/7627c435cbb0fda1725368a9c5d9cd920.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458795/JUNE_2022_New_Hires__Departures__and_Milestones.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/a5667f62b895b7780653f7a553769ab50.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/9d72f8d4bf4d3a1cc0dbba287676c1c80.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/779458c5983727df14469990866bda9d0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449394/Memo_to_Council_Budget_Amendments_June_2022.doc.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/ef456a9e264976a17ce155421044ecab0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452404/CHECK_REGISTER_JUNE.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452412/DOC063.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452410/DOC064.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452407/June_2022_Reserve_Balance_Investment_Report.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/6e4b9d4dd250edc4e49b8ca9a24aa9310.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460109/Town_Council_RM_Minutes_4.12.22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460110/Town_Council_Work_Session_4.26.22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460111/Town_Council_RM_5.10.22.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/9726b926d520bdf6bf48109eca18dca90.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/28f3a4681b3db67f656a43e863a7b0d30.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1462010/Resolution_6.28.22-Tardy_property_purchased_for_McMinnis_Springs.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/3717e065311bde3a68827f68193f22a60.pdf


7. PUBLIC HEARING(S)

8. NEW BUSINESS

8.A Special Events Permit Request - T & C Promotions - Uncle Billy's Reunion

8.B Urban Archery Season/Bow Hunting on Town Owned Land

8.C ARS Grant Program Design

8.D ARS Fair Housing Certification

8.E ARS Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan Certification

8.F ARS Performance Pool Program Funds & Leveraged Funding Acknowledgement

8.G ARS Program Income Plan

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

9.A School Zone, Speed Monitoring Camera Systems - Update

10. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

10.ADepartmental Reports - Finance

10.BUtility Projects Update

Attachment. Resolution 6.28.22 - CCUSA Utilities

 

 

 Attachment 1. Application Uncle Billy's Reunion 2023
Attachment 2. T and C Promotions Uncle Billy's Budget 2023

 Urban Archery Policy.pdf

 Attachment. ARS Program (002)

 Attachment. Fair Housing Certification

 Attachment. Anti Displacement Certification

 Attachment. Performance Pool Program Funds

 ARS Program Pool.docx

 

 

 

 Attachment 1. Meals Tax Report
Attachment 2. Sales Tax Report
Attachment 3. Lodging Tax Report
Attachment 4. Cigarette Tax Report

 Attachment 1. 1-July-2022 Status Report
Attachment 2. 1-July 22 Fraizer Drainage
Attachment 3. 1 July 2022 Springs & PS SCADA
Attachment 4. 1-July-22 Clarion Road Water Line Project
Attachment 5. 1-July-2022 Aeration Study Status Report
Attachment 6. 1-July-2022 WWTP Electrical Upgrade Status Report
Attachment 7. 1-July-2022 WTP Filter Upgrade Status Report
Attachment 8. 5 July-2022 Melinda HPZ status Report
Attachment 9. June 2022 Monthly Report for Council Members 1
Attachment 10. June 2022 Monthly Report for Council Members 2

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1462005/Resolution_6.28.22_-_CCUSA_Utilities.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/e3914d685de9af3d0eb6840b1ec2098a0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1457779/Application_Uncle_Billys_Reunion_2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1457780/T_and_C_Promotions_Uncle_Billys_Budget_2023.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/21b7d696c6fc996f52a020277a8bbd3a0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1457854/Urban_Archery_Policy.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/1043fcd92687817e7feb2be079a275e10.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460673/ARS_Program__002_.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/85c2f9bf0b598418e427c7a39d832e830.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460529/Fair_Housing_Certification.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/7e8ef72f4c397dce46f81a51d6a4a73b0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460494/Anti_Displacement_Certification.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/054a1fdb0055da3050da470b021d979a0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460658/Performance_Pool_Program_Funds_.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/579c56530bb32e3764b169da44f374950.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1464751/ARS_Program_Pool.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/16df898049dfcb17d43f42c2304edf180.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/3bf51b317beb4d0a451fa3b969e89dc90.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449380/11_Meals_Tax_FY2022_May_Update_for_Jul_Mtg.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449382/10_Local_Sales_Tax_Through_April_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449383/11_Lodging_Occupancy__Tax_FY2022_May_Report_Jul_Mtg.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449381/12_Cigarette_Tax_FY2022_Jun_Report.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/6b616155d99ee489e28bcfc219cbbb200.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452639/1-July-2022_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452640/1-July_22_Fraizer_Drainage.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452641/1_July_2022_Springs___PS_SCADA.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452642/1-July-22_Clarion_Road_Water_Line_Project.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452643/1-July-2022_Aeration_Study_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452644/1-July-2022_WWTP_ElectricalUpgrade_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452645/1-July-2022_WTP_Filter_Upgrade_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1453451/5_July-2022_Melinda_HPZ_status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458188/June_2022_Monthly_Report__for_Council_Members_1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458189/June_2022_Monthly_Report__for_Council_Members_2.pdf


10.CPublic Services Monthly Reports

10.DCommunity Development Monthly Report

10.EAltavista Police Department - Monthly Reports for June 2022

10.F Town Council Meeting Calendars - July & August

11. MATTERS FROM COUNCIL

12. CLOSED SESSION

13. ADJOURNMENT

Attachment 11. AMI Water Metering Status Update 7-7-22
Attachment 12. Lynch Creek Sewer Status Update 7-7-22

 Attachment 1. FLEET MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT-JUNE 2022
Attachment 2. BUILDINGS_AND_GROUNDS_MONTHLY_REPORT_JUNE_2022
Attachment 3. STREET_DEPARTMENT_MONTHLY_REPORT-_JUNE_2022

 Attachment. CD June 2022 Monthly Report

 Attachment 1. APD Monthly Report-June 2022
Attachment 2. APD Patrol on 29-June 2022

 Attachment 1. Town Council Meeting Calendar - July 2022
Attachment 2. Town Council Meeting Calendar - August 2022

 

 

 

THE TOWN OF ALTAVISTA IS COMMITTED TO FULL COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT STANDARDS. TRANSLATION SERVICES, ASSISTANCE OR ACCOMODATION
REQUESTS FROM PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES ARE TO BE REQUESTED NOT LESS THAN 3 WORKING
DAYS BEFORE THE DAY OF THE EVENT. PLEASE CALL (434) 369-5001 FOR ASSISTANCE.

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458921/AMI_Water_Metering_Status_Update_7-7-22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458923/Lynch_Creek_Sewer_Status_Update_7-7-22.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/8e7c7d673da7407bd98f92313499e0000.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1455894/FLEET_MAINTENANCE_DEPARTMENT-JUNE_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1455895/BUILDINGS_AND_GROUNDS_MONTHLY_REPORT_JUNE_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1455896/STREET_DEPARTMENT_MONTHLY_REPORT-_JUNE_2022_.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/496410b727178da5d2f1c358934b2f390.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1461060/CD_June_2022_Monthly_Report.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/235455c9f11dd689d65d5bd6c484cf630.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1459793/APD_Monthly_Report-June_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1459794/APD_Patrol_on_29-June_2022.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/9c31137faaf980f5460d9ce08a3f40de0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460010/Town_Council_Meeting_Calendar_-_July_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460011/Council_Calendar_-_August_2022.pdf


TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 3.A
RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS
Title: TOA Personnel Changes During June 2022
Staff Resource: Staff Directors
 

Action(s):

Information Item Only

Explanation:

This update shares the personnel changes that occurred with Town Staff/Employees during the month of
June, 2022.

Background:

This item is shared with Town Council at their regular meeting each month to keep them informed of
the town's employee changes and milestones during the previous month.

Funding Source(s):

N / A

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. JUNE 2022 New Hires, Departures, and Milestones

4

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458795/JUNE_2022_New_Hires__Departures__and_Milestones.pdf


TOWN OF ALTAVISTA

Changes in Employment

07/01/2020 through 08/11/2020

Milestone Recognition

No new milestones to report for June 2022

New Hire Listing

Brandon Snider Utilities Dept. - Maintenance Worker 6/20/2022

Tristen Baldwin Public Works - Maintenance Worker/Streets 7/5/2022

Jeremy Fish Public Works - Maintenance Worker/Utilities 7/5/2022

Michael Nava Public Works - Sr. Maintenance Specialist/B&G 7/5/2022

Departure Listing

Alan Adkins Public Works - Sr. Maintenance Specialist 6/22/2022

5



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 5.A
PARTNER UPDATES
Title: Altavista Area Chamber of Commerce
Staff Resource: Chamber of Commerce Representative
 

Action(s):

Informational Item
 

Explanation:

 
 

Background:

 
 

Funding Source(s):

N /A

Attachments:  (click item to open)

6



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 5.B
PARTNER UPDATES
Title: Altavista On Track Updates
Staff Resource: Dr. Scott Lowman, AOT President, and David Green, AOT Executive Director
 

Action(s):

Receive update from AOT representative(s).

Explanation:

Background:

Informational Only

Funding Source(s):

N / A

Attachments:  (click item to open)

7



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 6.A
CONSENT AGENDA
Title: FY2022 Budget Amendments / Departmental Transfers
Staff Resource: Tobie Shelton, Director of Finance and Administration
 

Action(s):

By consensus, this item is placed on the July 12th Regular Meeting Consent Agenda for approval.

Explanation:

To revise the FY2022 Budget to reflect changes that have occurred during the fiscal year.

Background:

Items that arise during a fiscal year that have been previously approved by Town Council, require
amendments to the budget.  The attached memo indicates the nature of the budget amendment, as well
as the reason and when Council directed staff on the action.  Some of the items may be receipt of
unbudgeted revenue, which requires an amendment to the budget as well. 

Funding Source(s):

Amendments as directed by previous action of Council or the receipt of funds to cover an associated
expense.

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. Memo to Council: FY2022 Budget Amendments/Dept. Transfers

8

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449394/Memo_to_Council_Budget_Amendments_June_2022.doc.pdf


9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 6.B
CONSENT AGENDA
Title: TOA Monthly Financial Reports - June 2022
Staff Resource: Tobie Shelton, Director of Finance and Administration
 

Action(s):

Accept the monthly financial reports

Explanation:

The following financial reports are provided to Town Council on a monthly basis for review and
acceptance. 

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. June 2022 Check Register
Attachment 2. June 2022 Revenue Report
Attachment 3. June 2022 Expenditure Report
Attachment 4. June 2022_Reserve Balance / Investment Report

58

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452404/CHECK_REGISTER_JUNE.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452412/DOC063.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452410/DOC064.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452407/June_2022_Reserve_Balance_Investment_Report.pdf


PREPARED 06/30/2022,14:06:29                             ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                              PAGE     1
PROGRAM: GM172L                                         SELECTED BY CHECK DATE                             ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11/2022
TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                                 FROM: 06/01/2022  TO: 06/30/2022                               REPORT NUMBER    38
BANK: 00  ****************************************
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK      DATE     BANK                      ORIGINAL
   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT      CLEARED  CODE STATUS                AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  43224       9 AFLAC                           06/03/2022          2,911.53                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43225     886 AT&T MOBILITY                   06/03/2022            344.16                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43226 9999997 BERKLEY, KIMBERLY M             06/03/2022             15.03                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43227      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          06/03/2022          1,429.89                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43228     973 CAMPBELL HEATING AND COOLING    06/03/2022               .00   06/17/2022    00 VOID                   179.00
  43229     967 CARDNO INC                      06/03/2022          7,292.56                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43230      28 COLUMBIA GAS                    06/03/2022            297.96                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43231 9999997 DETWILER, JOANNE MARIE          06/03/2022             80.62                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43232      20 J JOHNSON ELLER JR              06/03/2022          2,000.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43233     301 ENGLISH'S LLC                   06/03/2022            821.50                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43234      41 FISHER SCIENTIFIC               06/03/2022            833.83                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43235     851 FRIZZELL CONSTRUCTION INC       06/03/2022        208,173.85                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43236 9999998 Hubbard, Cozetta                06/03/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43237      52 HACH COMPANY                    06/03/2022            655.88                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43238     305 HAWKINS-GRAVES INC              06/03/2022            553.32                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43239     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  06/03/2022          7,888.71                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43240     892 J & J PORTAPOTTY INC            06/03/2022            180.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43241       1 KENNETH MOOREFIELD              06/03/2022            500.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43242     433 KONECRANES INC                  06/03/2022          1,695.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43243 9999997 MCCLINTIC, OLIVIA               06/03/2022             54.94                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43244     816 PACE ANAYLTICAL SERVICES LLC    06/03/2022            145.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43245     798 PEED & BORTZ LLC                06/03/2022          9,800.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43246 9999997 PEED, SARAH & LUCAS             06/03/2022              4.11                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43247     358 PHILLIPS EQUIPMENT CORPORATION  06/03/2022            137.70                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43248     588 PITNEY BOWES                    06/03/2022            169.08                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43249 9999997 REYNOLDS, (RUTHANNE) JORDAN     06/03/2022             39.38                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43250 9999997 RICHIE, DONALD                  06/03/2022             68.62                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43251     968 RIVER CITY SYSTEMS INC          06/03/2022          7,200.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43252 9999997 SMITH, CASEY L.                 06/03/2022              4.61                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43253     996 TONEY CONSTRUCTION INC          06/03/2022        210,807.46                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43254      35 TREASURER OF VA/VITA            06/03/2022              6.50                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43255     110 VUPS INC                        06/03/2022             52.50                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43256    1026 WELLS CONSTRUCTION CO INC       06/03/2022         29,592.60                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43267    1031 ACME STONE COMPANY INC          06/10/2022            348.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43268     128 ADAMS CONSTRUCTION CO           06/10/2022            551.79                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43269     667 ASHWELL'S TREE SERVICE LLC      06/10/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43270      11 AVOCA                           06/10/2022            440.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43271     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             06/10/2022            230.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43272     162 BENNETT'S MECHANICAL COMPANY I  06/10/2022            865.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43273       4 BOXLEY AGGREGATES               06/10/2022            504.70                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43274     197 CAMPBELL COUNTY DEPT OF RECREA  06/10/2022          1,000.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43275      16 CAMPBELL COUNTY UTILITIES & SE  06/10/2022          6,405.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43276     973 CAMPBELL HEATING AND COOLING    06/10/2022             89.50                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43277      32 CONTROL EQUIPMENT CO INC        06/10/2022         11,816.40                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43278       1 DAKOTA ASHBY                    06/10/2022            100.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43279     994 LARRY DALTON                    06/10/2022            400.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43280     118 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC        06/10/2022          1,451.54                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43281     119 FOSTER ELECTRIC CO INC          06/10/2022             82.33                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43282     111 GRAINGER INC                    06/10/2022            227.12                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43283      50 GRETNA TIRE INC                 06/10/2022            110.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43284 9999998 HUNT, ANGELIA                   06/10/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING

59



PREPARED 06/30/2022,14:06:29                             ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                              PAGE     2
PROGRAM: GM172L                                         SELECTED BY CHECK DATE                             ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11/2022
TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                                 FROM: 06/01/2022  TO: 06/30/2022                               REPORT NUMBER    38
BANK: 00  ****************************************
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK      DATE     BANK                      ORIGINAL
   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT      CLEARED  CODE STATUS                AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  43285      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  06/10/2022            470.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43286     964 LYNCHBURG SPECIALTY ENGRAVING   06/10/2022             25.95                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43287     935 MATTERN & CRAIG INC             06/10/2022          1,799.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43288    1030 MAYHEW AND SONS INC             06/10/2022            757.50                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43289     300 NAPA AUTO PARTS                 06/10/2022          1,569.18                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43290     454 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC         06/10/2022            155.76                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43291      67 ORKIN PEST CONTROL LLC          06/10/2022            357.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43292     588 PITNEY BOWES                    06/10/2022            169.08                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43293     857 RIVERSTREET NETWORKS            06/10/2022            366.41                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43294     467 SONNY MERRYMAN INC              06/10/2022            192.96                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43295      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  06/10/2022            703.88                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43296      92 UNIFIRST CORP                   06/10/2022          2,880.09                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43297      93 UNITED STATES POST OFFICE       06/10/2022            160.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43298     900 US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE       06/10/2022            232.66                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43299     136 USABLUEBOOK                     06/10/2022            582.48                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43300     601 VACORP                          06/10/2022            401.58                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43301 9999998 Watkins, Lori                   06/10/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43302     756 WAGEWORKS INC                   06/10/2022            122.32                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43303     658 WKDE-FM                         06/10/2022            110.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43376      84 ALTAVISTA JOURNAL               06/17/2022          1,134.95                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43377     162 BENNETT'S MECHANICAL COMPANY I  06/17/2022            585.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43378     591 BRAND ACCELERATION INC          06/17/2022          2,030.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43379     294 BUSINESS CARD                   06/17/2022         17,324.82                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43380     164 DMV                             06/17/2022            900.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43381      36 DOMINION VIRGINIA POWER         06/17/2022         52,250.34                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43382      40 FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION     06/17/2022             36.19                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43383      49 GERALDINE KAUFFMAN              06/17/2022          7,369.40                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43384 9999998 Hunt Nathaniel                  06/17/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43385      58 INSTRUMENTATION SERVICES INC    06/17/2022            708.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43386       1 JACOB EAST                      06/17/2022            175.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43387       1 JOCOB EAST                      06/17/2022            250.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43388       1 JOHN JORDAN                     06/17/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43389       1 MARIE MITCHELL                  06/17/2022             75.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43390       1 MARVIN CLEMENTS                 06/17/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43391       1 MEGHAN BOLLING                  06/17/2022            100.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43392     860 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERV DEPOS  06/17/2022            595.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43393    1037 LLC ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS      06/17/2022            376.98                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43394       1 REGGIE BENNETT                  06/17/2022            100.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43395     939 SECURITY LOCK AND KEY           06/17/2022          1,120.75                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43396       1 STEPHEN BOND                    06/17/2022            100.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43397     551 WOHLFORD, LARRY                 06/17/2022             84.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43398     793 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES        06/17/2022            415.78                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43399 9999998 king, cynthia                   06/24/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43400     128 ADAMS CONSTRUCTION CO           06/24/2022            679.38                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43401       9 AFLAC                           06/24/2022          2,911.53                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43402     901 ANDERSON CONSTRUCTION INC       06/24/2022         31,004.68                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43403      91 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD   06/24/2022         42,177.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43404     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             06/24/2022            230.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43405      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          06/24/2022         10,126.58                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43406     583 CAMPBELL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  06/24/2022            946.20                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43407     427 CENTURYLINK                     06/24/2022            627.04                 00 OUTSTANDING

60



PREPARED 06/30/2022,14:06:29                             ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                              PAGE     3
PROGRAM: GM172L                                         SELECTED BY CHECK DATE                             ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11/2022
TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                                 FROM: 06/01/2022  TO: 06/30/2022                               REPORT NUMBER    38
BANK: 00  ****************************************
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK      DATE     BANK                      ORIGINAL
   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT      CLEARED  CODE STATUS                AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  43408      32 CONTROL EQUIPMENT CO INC        06/24/2022         13,713.52                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43409     394 ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS INC          06/24/2022            153.91                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43410     916 GRANITE TELECOMMUNICATIONS      06/24/2022            700.96                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43411      52 HACH COMPANY                    06/24/2022          1,753.16                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43412      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  06/24/2022            470.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43413 9999998 KING, BIACONIA                  06/24/2022            150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43414     143 KONE BROOKLYN                   06/24/2022          3,759.96                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43415    1002 LORD & COMPANY                  06/24/2022          1,250.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43416     218 MINNESOTA LIFE                  06/24/2022            158.77                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43417     897 NATIONAL ELEVATOR INSPECT SERV  06/24/2022            337.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43418     816 PACE ANAYLTICAL SERVICES LLC    06/24/2022            145.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43419    1007 PINEY RIDGE CONTRACTING & CONS  06/24/2022         80,496.41                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43420     655 RALPH M FARMER PAINTING         06/24/2022            960.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43421      80 SOUTHSIDE ELECTRIC COOP         06/24/2022          1,087.31                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43422     778 SPRINT                          06/24/2022          1,257.76                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43423      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  06/24/2022            703.88                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43424      95 UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL VA        06/24/2022             14.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43425     136 USABLUEBOOK                     06/24/2022            192.32                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43426    1033 WAYFAIR LLC                     06/24/2022            554.26                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43427     160 ABB INC                         06/30/2022          3,040.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43428       1 ALAN ADKINS                     06/30/2022            446.36                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43429      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          06/30/2022          1,408.62                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43430     145 CHANDLER CONCRETE CO INC        06/30/2022            558.75                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43431      28 COLUMBIA GAS                    06/30/2022            227.98                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43432     555 DUKE'S ROOT CONTROL INC         06/30/2022          9,391.30                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43433      20 J JOHNSON ELLER JR              06/30/2022          2,000.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43434     924 ENGINEERING CONCEPTS INC        06/30/2022          1,025.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43435     937 ENGLISH CONSTRUCTION CO INC     06/30/2022        540,843.63                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43436      41 FISHER SCIENTIFIC               06/30/2022            309.82                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43437       1 GEOFFREY SMITH                  06/30/2022            100.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43438     111 GRAINGER INC                    06/30/2022             34.38                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43439     332 HURT & PROFFITT INC             06/30/2022          2,500.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43440     892 J & J PORTAPOTTY INC            06/30/2022            180.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43441     172 LLOYD ELECTRIC COMPANY INC      06/30/2022          5,073.85                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43442     993 MENDON PIPELINE INC             06/30/2022        255,117.75                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43443     860 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERV DEPOS  06/30/2022            599.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43444     816 PACE ANAYLTICAL SERVICES LLC    06/30/2022            231.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43445      72 PHYSICIANS TREATMENT CENTER     06/30/2022          1,240.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43446     843 BETTY PICKERAL                  06/30/2022          1,150.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43447     884 PITNEY BOWES/RESERVE ACCOUNT    06/30/2022          1,200.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43448     467 SONNY MERRYMAN INC              06/30/2022            192.96                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43449     621 THE PORTRAIT PLACE              06/30/2022             62.95                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43450     872 TIAA, FSB                       06/30/2022            153.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43451     996 TONEY CONSTRUCTION INC          06/30/2022         39,900.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43452     181 TRUCK BODY CORP                 06/30/2022          6,000.00                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43453      92 UNIFIRST CORP                   06/30/2022          2,271.99                 00 OUTSTANDING
  43454     136 USABLUEBOOK                     06/30/2022            124.11                 00 OUTSTANDING

BANK: 00  ****************************************

61



PREPARED 06/30/2022,14:06:29                             ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                              PAGE     4
PROGRAM: GM172L                                         SELECTED BY CHECK DATE                             ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11/2022
TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                                 FROM: 06/01/2022  TO: 06/30/2022                               REPORT NUMBER    38
BANK: 00  ****************************************
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK      DATE     BANK                      ORIGINAL
   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT      CLEARED  CODE STATUS                AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

NO. OF CHECKS:   149                 CHECKS OUTSTANDING      1,688,486.86 ***
OUTSTANDING CHECKS:   148      RECONCILED CHECKS:           VOID CHECKS:     1

1,688,307.86                            .00                   .00                                           179.00

62



PREPARED 06/30/2022,14:06:29                             ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                              PAGE     5
PROGRAM: GM172L                                         SELECTED BY CHECK DATE                             ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11/2022
TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                                 FROM: 06/01/2022  TO: 06/30/2022                               REPORT NUMBER    38
BANK: 00  ****************************************
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK      DATE     BANK                      ORIGINAL
   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT      CLEARED  CODE STATUS                AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

NO. OF CHECKS:   149                      TOTAL CHECKS       1,688,486.86 ***
OUTSTANDING CHECKS:   148      RECONCILED CHECKS:           VOID CHECKS:     1

1,688,307.86                            .00                   .00                                           179.00

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



10
0



10
1



10
2



10
3



10
4



10
5



10
6



10
7



10
8



10
9



11
0



11
1



11
2



Town of Altavista

Investment Deposit Totals

Balance as of June 30, 2022

Money Market Account 4,710,027.07 5,095,522.00

Certificate of Deposit 2,946,191.55 532,557.59

LGIP 5,655,865.24 186,161.36

13,312,083.86$  6,240.00

20,821.44

2,764.12

Money Market Account 230,074.92 551,265.31

Certificate of Deposit 58,056.17

LGIP 2,560,188.87 270,190.00

2,790,263.79$    48,968.32

11,300.00

172,348.59

Money Market Account 57,350.00

Certificate of Deposit 0.00 1,000,000.00

LGIP 1,007,810.80 212,826.00

1,065,160.80$    1,766,891.00

9,935,911.90$       

Money Market Account 79,181.78

Certificate of Deposit 639,628.54

LGIP 77,345.22

796,155.54$       General Fund:  The General Fund Undesignated

Fund Balance at the close of each FY per the town's

audit, should be at least 50% of Annual Recurring

Money Market Account 0.00 Revenues.  (8/10/21) 3,211,965

Certificate of Deposit 0.00

LGIP 245,241.91

245,241.91$       Enterprise Fund: Unrestricted cash for the 

Enterprise Fund should be a minimum of 50% of total

Federal Forfeiture Account $0.00 water and sewer utility fund expenditures.  (12/13/11) 1,883,557

State Forfeiture Account $7,944.30 5,095,522

Operating Cash Account 1,296,130.64$    

Grand Total Investments and Deposits 19,512,980.84$  

13,346,545.09$  

6,166,435.75$    

Designated Balance

Undesignated Balance

DISTRIBUTION OF UNDESIGNATED FUNDS

General Fund Reserves

Policy Money

PCB

Accrued Liability

ED remaining balance of $35,000 (website and marketing)Sub-Total

Earmarked for AOT No Interest Loan Program - Grant (5/11/21)

"Pop-Up" Altavista Funding - Downtown Business Invest GrantEnterprise Fund Reserves

Funds earmarked for items not completed during prior FY

Canoe Launch Site

CIP Items Earmarked for Future Purchase

Park Improvements as designated by Roberta F. Jenks' EstateSub-Total

Park Improvements

AVOCA Maintenance Funds

Theater Transfer In FY2022 Budget

Sub-Total

Total Reserve Policy Funds

EARMARKED FUNDS

Sub-Total

RESERVE POLICY FUNDS

Proceeds from sale of Armory

Green Hill Cemetery

Sub-Total

Highway Fund

ARPA Funding - 1st Tranche

AEDA

Main St Sidewalk Extension Match (VDOT)

113



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 6.C
CONSENT AGENDA
Title: Town Council Meeting Minutes
Staff Resource: Crystal Hailey, Assistant Town Clerk
 

Action(s):

Approval of each minute document as presented or amended.

Explanation:

Attached are the meeting minutes from the April regular meeting and work session and the May regular
meeting and work session, for Town Council's review and approval.

Background:

The meeting minutes from each and every Town Council meeting are submitted to Council for their
review and approval.

Funding Source(s):

N / A

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. Town Council RM 4.12.22
Attachment 2. Town Council Work Session 4.26.22
Attachment 3. Town Council RM 5.10.22

114

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460109/Town_Council_RM_Minutes_4.12.22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460110/Town_Council_Work_Session_4.26.22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460111/Town_Council_RM_5.10.22.pdf


Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

The Altavista Town Council held their April 2022 regular meeting in Council Chambers of the 

Town Hall/J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street, on Tuesday, April 12th, at 6 p.m. 

 

1. At six o’clock p.m., Mayor Mike Mattox called the regular meeting to order and presided. 

 

Council Members 

Present:    Vice Mayor Reginald Bennett 

     Mr. Timothy George 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 

     Dr. Scott Lowman 

     Mayor Michael Mattox 

Mr. Wayne Mitchell 

      

Absent:    Mr. Tracy Emerson 

 

Town Staff present:  Mr. Gary Shanaberger, Town Manager 

     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Treasurer/Finance Director 

     Mr. Thomas Merricks, Altavista Chief of Police 

     Mr. Tom Fore, Public Services Director 

     Ms. Sharon D. Williams, Community Development Director 

     Mr. Jeff Arthur, Public Works Manager 

     Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 

     Mrs. Crystal Hailey, Assistant Town Clerk 

  

Reverend Walter Pillow, Altavista Baptist Tabernacle, gave the invocation for this evening. 

After the invocation, Mayor Mike Mattox led the meeting in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

2. Agenda Adoption 

Mayor Mattox informed everyone of an amendment to that evening’s agenda. 

• Section #8, Item C.:  Boundary Line Adjustment – Schedule Public Hearing 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions, comments, or concerns in regard 

to the April 12th meeting agenda, to which there were none. 

 

Councilman Wayne Mitchell made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jay Higginbotham, to 

approve the April 12th, 2022, Altavista Town Council Meeting Agenda as amended. 

 

Motion carried 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 
 

 

3. Recognitions and Presentations 

A. Personnel Changes 

The Town of Altavista’s personnel changes during March 2022: 
  

New Hire Listing: 

Phillip Brightwell Public Works Mechanic 

Isaac Gratto  Utilities Maintenance Mechanic 

Ted Hogan  Transit PT Bus Driver 
 

Departure Listing: 

Emily Thurman Police Department - Officer 

115



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

 

B. Presentation by Dale Moore 

Mayor Mattox recognized Altavista citizen and business owner, Dale Moore, to come 

before Council. He stated Mr. Moore was one of the area’s leading businessmen that started 

his business with very little and grew his company to be a major asset to his community. 

 

Mr. Moore thanked Town Council for their commitment and vision for the Town of 

Altavista. He shared his concerns with blighted buildings located throughout Altavista and 

offered his time to help the town address the issue. 

 

Mr. Moore then referenced  the small business community of Altavista and suggested the 

town consider offering local small businesses some assistance with updating the facades of 

their business to help keep Altavista looking nice. He said, he was offered this assistance 

when he first started his business, that was then located on Broad Street. 

 

Mr. Moore concluded by referencing the Town of Altavista’s Annual Uncle Billy’s Day Festival, 

which had not been held the past couple of years due to the COVID pandemic and currently not 

having a town organization available or interested in organizing the event. He stated the festival 

brought a lot of visitors and revenue to the town and he would like to see the 70yr old tradition 

return and stated he would be happy to help whoever took on the task. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett thanked Mr. Moore for his continued interest in helping his community grow. 

He informed Mr. Moore that currently, the town did not have a property maintenance code or code 

enforcement officer to address the blight issues pertaining to commercial buildings, only residential 

properties, but stated they were willing to listen to any ideas he might have that would help. 

 

Mr. Bennett referenced Mr. Moore’s mention of the town helping small businesses update their 

exterior façade and informed him that Altavista On Track had a grant program that offered this 

assistance. He stated the town continued to look for grants that would help small businesses thrive. 

 

Mr. Bennett stated the Uncle Billy’s Day Festival was organized in the past few years by the 

Altavista Area Chamber of Commerce, however, they did not have enough volunteers to continue 

hosting the event and no one else stepped up to take it over. 

 

Mr. Bennett thanked Mr. Moore for coming before Council to share his concerns on the 

aforementioned items and said that Town Council valued his experience and would be happy to 

have him collaborate with the town on items he could share insight on. 

 

Councilman Mitchell also thanked Mr. Moore for sharing his concerns and input regarding blighted 

properties. He informed Mr. Moore there were multiple ordinances in the Town Code that were no 

longer applicable, and the town was working to update the Code accordingly. 

 

Mr. Mitchell referenced AOT’s Façade Grant mentioned by the Vice Mayor and stated he believed 

the grant’s availability needed to be advertised more so that small businesses were better informed.  

 

Mr. Mitchell stated he believed Town Staff would be happy to have any volunteer assistance that 

Mr. Moore offered. 

 

Councilman Lowman shared his appreciation for Mr. Moore not only pointing out issues of 

concern, but also offering to help the town address those items. 

 

Mr. Moore referenced Altavista’s new Town Manager, Gary Shanaberger, and he stated he recently 

had the opportunity to have lunch with Mr. Shanaberger and hear his vision for the town. He said 

that he believed Mr. Shanaberger was going to be a good asset to the town and he looked forward 

to working with him. 

 

Councilman George shared his appreciation for Mr. Moore’s willingness to help the town with the 

blighted buildings issue. He said there were multiple buildings in town that needed to be addressed. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated that he would like to “go on record” and say that he was against 

the town having a property maintenance code because the authority was often misused. 

116



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

 

He shared an idea for Council and the Town Manager to consider - allowing Mr. Moore to 

collaborate with staff and work on addressing some of the blighted and derelict buildings in town. 

 

Mayor Mattox referenced the first AOT (Altavista On Track) meeting, held in 2002, that he and 

Mr. Moore both attended and stated that Mr. Moore had always strived to improve and grow the 

Town of Altavista. He thanked Mr. Moore for his time and his offer to assist the town with the 

aforementioned items/issues. 

 

Mr. Moore shared that when he came to Altavista he considered himself poor, but he did not dwell 

on how much money he could make, but rather how many people he could employee and help do 

better for themselves. Mr. Moore stated that his business did well over the years under that original 

concept and continues his belief everyday that it is not how much money you have that makes you 

important, but how many lives you were able to touch and impact for the good. 

 

 

4. Citizen’s Time  

Mayor Mattox asked if there were any citizen(s) present wishing to address Council with a 

comment or concern, to which there were none. 

 

                 

5. Town/Community Partner Updates 

A. Altavista Area Chamber of Commerce (the Chamber) 

There was no one present at this meeting to represent the Chamber. 

 

B. Altavista On Track (AOT) 

 

Altavista On Track’s Board President Reverend Ed Soto and Vice President Regina Adams 

gave Council a brief update on Altavista On Track’s most recent  activities and events. 

 

Reverend Soto shared with Council the AOT 2021 Cumulative Program Statistics Report 

for Council’s review. This was informational only, with the following highlights: 

 

o Five (5) downtown businesses utilized AOT’s Downtown Business Investment Grant; 

and four of those five were still in business. This grant pays for the first three months 

of rent and utility bills for a new business. 

 

o Four downtown businesses utilized AOT’s façade grant program; three of which had 

never used AOT’s resources in the recent past. 

 

o Fifteen hundred people attended AOT’s inaugural BBQ, Bourbon, & Beer Festival in 

2021. The event’s name would be changed to remove Uncle Billy’s and be further 

known as the Altavista BBQ, Bourbon, & Beer Festival, with increased attendance 

expected due to its new KCBS sanction (Kansas City Barbeque Society).  

 

Reverend Soto referenced Mr. Moore’s mention of the blighted  buildings in town and the 

desire of the town for Uncle Billy’s Day to return. He stated working on those types of 

things was part of what AOT was intended for and said AOT would be happy to have Mr. 

Moore on their board for his input and guidance. 

 

Reverend Soto also informed Council that several applicants had been interviewed for the 

vacant Main Street Coordinator position, by himself, as AOT’s Board President, the AOT 

Vice President Regina Adams, the Community Development Director Sharon Williams, 

and Finance & Administration Director Tobie Shelton. He stated AOT was confident they 

had found a capable candidate, with strong leadership skills, that had experience with 

government and non-profit agencies, and was familiar with the Altavista community. 

 

 

117



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

 

In conclusion, Reverend Soto shared that AOT would be separating its operational 

connection with the town and stated, as part of that decision, the AOT Executive Director 

would no longer be a town staff member. He requested the consideration of Council to 

continue supporting AOT as a town partner by continuing to subsidize the director position. 

Reverend Soto said that he would be happy to answer any questions Council may have. 

 

 Councilman Mitchell asked staff if the FY2023 draft budget still had a placeholder for 

AOT’s Executive Director position as it had in the past. 

 

Finance Director Tobie Shelton confirmed that it did. 

 

Mr. Mitchell said that he considered the budget placeholder as a confirmation that the town 

would continue to support AOT and subsidize the position. He shared his favor with 

continuing to support AOT but he would refer the request to the Town Manager for 

direction and any final decision on the matter. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked, with Rev. Soto and Mrs. Adams’ board terms ending soon, would it 

be more reasonable for AOT to have the new board president and vice president give their 

input on who AOT’s new executive director would be and would fit the new board’s vision 

for AOT’s future. 

 

Reverend Soto stated it was AOT’s intent to hire a new executive director first and have 

that person give their input for who the new board members would be. He stated that he 

believed having a strong leader (executive director) would help guide the AOT Board in 

sharing AOT’s vision.  

 

Councilman George asked if the decision of this request was time sensitive. 

 

Reverend Soto said the request was for Council’s consideration, however, the person AOT 

had in mind for the executive director position was actively looking for employment, so 

the sooner a decision could be made, the better. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated, if the town was subsidizing the director position, he 

asked for clarification why AOT requested the position only be managed by them and not 

in collaboration with the town. 

 

Reverend Soto stated, in the past, the person in that position had “two bosses”, the town 

and AOT. He said he believed the director was “tugged” between their duties and visions 

from each of the two organization. 

 

After brief discussion, Mayor Mattox asked Council to consider deferring the decision of 

this request to a later date, to allow further consideration of the matter by the Town 

Manager. 

 

There was a consensus of Town Council to do so. 

 

Mayor Mattox thanked Reverend Soto and Mrs. Adams for the updates and thanked AOT 

for the work they do for the Town of Altavista and its community. 

 

6. Consent Agenda  

• March 2022 Financial Reports 

o Check Register, Revenue Report, Expenditure Report, and Reserve 

Balance/Investment Report 
 

• Approval of Council Meeting Minutes: 

o February 22nd, 2022, Work Session 

o March 8th, 2022, Regular Meeting 

118



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions, comments, or concerns in regard 

to the March 8th Consent Agenda, to which there were none. 
 

Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett made a motion, seconded by Councilman Tim George, to approve 

the April 12, 2022, Council Meeting Consent Agenda as presented. 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Bennett  Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

  

 

7. Public Hearings 

There were no public hearings scheduled for this date. 

 

8. New Business 

A. Regional Mutual Aid Agreement 
 

The Altavista Police Department’s (APD) Police Chief, Tommy Merricks, requested 

Council’s consideration to renew the Regional Mutual Aid Agreement with surrounding 

law enforcement agencies. 
 

Amherst County Sheriff’s Office Town of Altavista Police Department 

Appomattox County Sheriff’s Office Town of Amherst Police Department 

Bedford County Sheriff’s Office  Town of Bedford Police Department 

Campbell County Sheriff’s Office Town of Brookneal Police Department 

City of Lynchburg Sheriff’s Office Town of Chatham Police Department 

Nelson County Sheriff’s Office  Town of Hurt Police Department 

Pittsylvania County Sheriff’s Office City of Lynchburg Police Department 
 

Chief Merricks informed Council that the current agreement expired on May 1st, 2022 

and required authorization by Council for the Town Manager to renew the agreement. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Council if they had any questions regarding the request or the 

Regional Mutual Aid Agreement. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham asked Chief Merricks if the agreement stayed the same as the 

previous agreement, or if there were any changes he believed the agreement needed. 

 

Chief Merricks stated he believed the agreement was sufficient and covered each law 

enforcement agency when assisting another locality/agency. 

 

Town Attorney John Eller concurred with Chief Merricks that the agreement was viable. 

 

Councilman Jay Higginbotham made a motion, seconded by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, 

to approve the request by Chief Merrick and adopted a resolution authorizing the Town 

Manager to renew the Regional Mutual Aid Agreement for the Town of Altavista Police 

Department. 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Bennett  Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

119



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

 

B. Use of TOA Brownfields Grant – Gratto Phase II Assessment 

 

Altavista Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, referenced the 26 acres 

recently purchased by the Gratto family that sits along the Staunton River, behind the 

former Lane Company property, and reminded Council of their approval to allow staff to 

utilize a portion of the town’s Virginia Brownfields Grant to conduct a Phase I 

Environment Site Assessment (ESA) of the aforementioned property. 

 

Ms. Williams asked Council to consider allowing the town to also fund a Phase II ESA 

($25,000) for a subsurface investigation of the soil, soil gas, and groundwater, to identify 

any sources of environmental impact. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated that environmental assessments could be ongoing for 

long periods of time, which could be very costly to the property owner. He shared his 

favor with the town assisting the Gratto family with the cost of a Phase II ESA. 

  

Councilman George asked, if there were contaminants found, what were the next steps. 

 

Ms. Williams stated there were additional funds available from the state for remediation 

and, if Council approved, Town Staff could assist Mr. Gratto with applying for a 

remediation grant/funds. 

 

Councilman Wayne Mitchell made a motion, seconded by Councilman Scott Lowman, to 

approve the request and authorize staff to move forward with a Phase II ESA of the Gratto 

property, using $25,000 of the town’s Brownfields Funds. 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Bennett  Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 
 

 

C. Boundary Line Adjustment – Schedule Public Hearing 

 

Town Attorney John Eller referenced the 89 acres purchased by the town in 2021 from the 

Fauntleroy family and stated it was time to move forward in the boundary line adjustment 

process by holding the required public hearing. 

 

Mr. Eller informed Council that Campbell County scheduled a public hearing in the matter 

for their May3rd meeting, and accordingly, he suggested the Town of Altavista hold a 

public hearing regarding the matter at their May 10th Council meeting. 

 

Mr. Eller stated, once the public hearings were completed, the town would accept the 

agreement with Campbell County and the item would then be sent to the Circuit Court for 

approval consideration. 

 

Councilman Jay Higginbotham made a motion, seconded by Councilman Wayne Mitchell, 

to authorize staff to advertise that a public hearing would be held on Tuesday, May 10th 

regarding 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Bennett  Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

120



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

 

9. Unfinished Business 

A. Mister to Dewater Emergency Overflow Pond 

 

Altavista Public Services Director Tom Fore referenced Council’s previous approval to 

allow staff to use a “mister” to dewater Altavista’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 

emergency overflow pond (EOP). He stated, when looking for a mister, he found that 

mobile misters were more expensive than a stationary unit. 

 

Mr. Fore requested Council’s approval to sole source a mister unit from EcoMister, in the 

amount of $160,000, with and extra $20,000 for staff to hard wire the unit in; and to utilize 

the town’s existing EOP funds reserved for EOP remediation to pay for the $180,000 cost. 

 

Mr. Fore stated, once the EOP was dewatered, which was a three year process, the entire 

site would be filled in with clay. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham referenced Delegate Matt Farris and said that he heard that Mr. 

Farris intended to help Altavista get funding for some of its environmental issues. He 

shared his favor in staff investigating the possibility of acquiring funding assistance from 

the state for the EOP dewatering project. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham stated that he was ok with using a mister to dewater the EOP but was 

unsure that filling in the entire site afterwards was the best option. He suggested waiting to 

make this decision until after Council had time to discuss the matter further at their June 

7th retreat/work session and to hear Dr. Lowman’s additional thoughts on the matter. 

 

Councilman George asked how deep the was the EOP and what it would cost the town to 

fill the EOP after the dewatering process was complete. 

 

Mr. Fore stated the EOP was 6 ½ acres in circumference, 2 feet deep close to the bank, and 

approximately 6 feet in the middle of the pond. He informed Council that the town had a 

stockpile of clay they would utilize to start filling the pond after dewatering and would 

continue to increase the level of clay when more was available; costing only the gas to pick 

up the free material. 

 

Councilman Lowman stated he believed the main goal at that time was to dewater the EOP 

and he shared his favor in Mr. Fore moving forward with purchasing the mister. 

 

Mr. Fore referenced Councilman Higginbotham’s mention of Delegate Matt Farris and the 

assistance that may be available from the state with this project. He stated that he would 

investigate that possibility and utilize any funds that were available to help pay for the cost 

of the EOP project. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett thanked Mr. Fore for doing his due diligence for this project. He asked 

Mr. Fore if dewatering the EOP would remedy the current state of the pond and would it 

satisfy the DEQ’s (Department of Environmental Quality) standards for this type of issue. 

 

Mr. Fore stated the dewatering project would begin the process of remediation and once 

the dewatering was complete, allow the town to obtain direction from the DEQ on the next 

viable step to complete the remediation process. 

 

Vice Mayor Reggie Bennet made a motion, seconded by Councilman Scott Lowman, to 

authorize Public Services Director Tom Fore to move forward with purchasing a mister 

from EcoMister in the amount of $160,000, and $20,000 for an electrical upgrade at the 

WWTP facility to accommodate the mister; in order for the town to start the dewatering 

process of the emergency overflow pond at the Altavista Wastewater Plant. 
 

 

121



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Bennett  Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

 

 

B. Advanced Metering System - Engineering Selection 

 

Altavista Public Services Director Tom Fore informed Town Council that during a recent 

meeting with Jeff Arthur, Public Works Manager, and Brandon Bell, Utilities Supervisor, 

to review submitted proposals for the AMI package by four of the town’s on-call engineer 

firms, they all agreed that Hurt & Proffitt would be their recommendation to award the 

contract for the AMI (Advanced Metering Infrastructure) meter system project. He said 

Hurt & Proffitt’s proposal amount was  $27,500, $500 over one other firm, but considerably 

less than the other two engineer firms. 

 

Councilman Jay Higginbotham made a motion, seconded by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, 

to accept staff’s recommendation and award the AMI Meter System Project to Hurt & 

Proffitt in the amount of $27,500. 

 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Bennett  Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

 

 

C. FY2023 Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) “First Reading” 

 

Altavista Finance Director Tobie Shelton referenced Town Council’s April 5th Work 

Session, a “continued” meeting from a March work session. She said staff made the 

changes to the FY2023 draft budget and CIP as directed by Council from discussions at 

that meeting. She stated the approved budget would cover the time period between July 

1st, 2022, and June 30th, 2023. 

 

Mrs. Shelton gave Council a breakdown of the $9,688,830 proposed operations budget, 

without CIP projects, which included the General Fund, Highway Fund, Enterprise Fund, 

Cemetery Fund, and amounts to be transferred to Reserves. 

 

Mrs. Shelton stated there were no proposed tax increases in the FY2023 budget; however, 

the budget did include previously approved utility rate increases of 10% water and 5% 

sewer, which if approved, would take effective December 1st, 2022. 

 

Mrs. Shelton stated staff was requesting Council’s authorization to schedule the necessary 

public hearing on Tuesday, May 10th, 2022, at the 6:00 p.m. Council Meeting, for the 

FY2023 Budget, the FY2023-2027Capital Improvement Plan, and the utility rate changes. 

 

Councilman Wayne Mitchell made a motion, seconded by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, to 

authorize Town Staff to schedule a public hearing on Tuesday, May 10th, 2022, regarding 

the proposed FY2023 Budget and FY2023-2027 proposed Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

 

 

 

122



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Bennett  Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

 

 

10. Reports and Communication 

A. March 2022 Departmental Reports 

B. Council Monthly Calendars – April and May 

C. Informational Items 

 

The Manager’s Report, Departmental Reports, and Council Calendars were delivered to Town 

Council with their April Regular Council Meeting Agenda Pre-Packet.  

 

Mayor Mattox asked the Town Manager and Department Directors if they had any comments 

pertaining to their monthly reports, to which there were none. 

 

 

11. Matters from Council 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any additional concerns or items for discussion, 

to which there were none. 

 

Mayor Mattox thanked Town Staff, Town Employees, and Town Citizens for working together 

for the betterment of the Town of Altavista. 

 

Mayor Mattox also thanked Tom Fore, Altavista’s Public Services Director, for the hard work 

he does for the town and shared his appreciation for Mr. Fore moving his family to Altavista 

in order to enable him to better serve the Altavista community. 

 

Mr. Fore stated that he completed his goal at his previous location (building a new utility 

infrastructure) and was ready to retire; but when asked, he could not turn down the opportunity 

to help guide the Town of Altavista with improving their utility infrastructure. He stated that 

he liked helping people and enjoyed being a part of Altavista’s community. 

 

Mayor Mattox concluded by referencing the Town Manager, Gary Shanaberger, and Finance 

Director, Tobie Shelton, and thanked them both for their hard work and their due diligence on 

the town’s proposed budget, to find ways to save money and be more efficient. 

 

 

12. Closed Session 

 

I move that the Altavista Town Council convene in closed session in accordance with the 

provisions set out in the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 

 

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(8) Consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by a public body 

regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel. Nothing 

in this subdivision shall be construed to permit the closure of a meeting merely because an 

attorney representing the public body is in attendance or is consulted on a matter. 

 

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, seconded by Councilman Wayne Mitchell. 

 

Motion carried. 

VOTE:  Mr. Wayne Mitchell Yes Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Dr. Scott Lowman Yes Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

123



Town Council Regular Meeting April 12th, 2022 
 

 

Town Council went into Closed Session at 7:10 p.m. 

Notice was given that Council was back in regular session at 7:58 p.m. 

 

FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Bennett, seconded by 

Councilman Wayne Mitchell, to adopt the certification of a closed meeting.  

 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING WHEREAS, the Town Council has convened a closed 

meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with provisions 

of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the town council 

that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Town Council hereby certifies, to the best of each 

member’s knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting 

requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which this certification 

resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion 

convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed, or considered by the Town Council. 

 

VOTE:   Mr. Wayne Mitchell Yes Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett  Yes 

   Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes  Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Dr. Scott Lowman Yes Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

 

 

13. Adjournment 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if there was anything else to bring before Town Council or any additional 

comments or concerns from Council, to which there were none.  

  

Mayor Mattox adjourned the meeting at 8:02 p.m. 

 

 

________________________ 

Michael Mattox, Mayor 

 

       __________________________ 

       Gary Shanaberger, Town Clerk, 

       Town Manager 

124



 

Town Council Work Session, April 26, 2022 
 

 

The April 2022 Work Session for Altavista’s Town Council was held in Council Chambers of the 

J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street, on Tuesday, April 26, at 5:00 PM. 

 

Mayor Mike Mattox called the meeting to order and presided. 

 

Town Council 

Members present:   Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson 

Mr. Timothy George 

     Dr. Scott Lowman 

    Mayor Michael Mattox 

    Mr. Wayne Mitchell 

 

Member(s) Absent:   Mr. Jay Higginbotham 

     

Also Present:    Mr. Gary Shanaberger, Town Manager 

     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Treasurer/Finance Director 

    Mr. Thomas Merricks, APD Chief of Police 

    Ms. Sharon D. Williams, Community Development Director 

    Mr. Tom Fore, Public Services Director 

    Mr. Jeff Arthur, Public Works Manager 

    Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 

    Mrs. Crystal Hailey, Assistant Town Clerk 
 

 

1. Agenda Adoption 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions or concerns in regard to the 

proposed March 2022 Council Work Session Agenda, to which there were none. 
 

Councilman Tracy Emerson made a motion, seconded by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, to 

approve the agenda as presented. 
 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes  

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

 

 

2. Recognitions and Presentations 

None scheduled for this date. 

 

 

3. Citizen’s Time 

Mayor Mattox asked if there were any citizens present that would like to come before Council 

regarding a non-agenda item. 

 

Betty Moorman, 900 16th Street, Altavista, came before Council with concerns about dogs in 

her neighborhood being let out of their house periodically throughout the day and stated the 

dogs had been defecating in her yard. She said there were other property owners in her 

neighborhood that had complained to her about the same issue. 

 

Mayor Mattox and Council thanked Ms. Moorman for her time and attending the meeting. 

 

 

4. Items Referred from Previous Meetings 

There were none to discuss at this meeting. 

125



 

Town Council Work Session, April 26, 2022 
 

 

5. Discussion for Items New and Unfinished 

5.1  Special Event Permit Request – Lori Watkins, State Farm Insurance 

 

Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, informed Town Council that 

2022 was the 100th year anniversary of State Farm Insurance. 

 

Ms. Williams referenced a Special Event Permit application submitted by Lori Watkins, 

local State Farm Agent, requesting the use of English Park on Friday, June 3rd, to host an 

event to celebrate State Farm’s 100th year anniversary. She stated Public Services and the 

Police Department had been made aware of the request and believed there wouldn’t be any 

problem with allowing the event. 

 

Ms. Williams stated the celebration would be a family-friendly event with free admission, 

and no alcohol was being served. She said Ms. Watkins intended to offer music, food 

trucks, and a bounce house, along with tables/stations set up to promote State Farm. 

 

Ms. Williams stated that she and a representative for Lori Watkins, Ryan Patterson, were 

both available for questions from Council. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if Campbell County had been notified of Ms. Watkins’ intent to use 

a bounce house at the proposed event. 

 

Ms. Williams said that Ms. Watkins was informed that she would need to acquire a permit 

from Campbell County to have a bounce house at her event. Ms. Williams stated that staff 

would follow up with Ms. Watkins to make sure the permit was secured, and all other 

requirements had been met. 

 

Councilman George asked if there was intent to close the park for the event. 

 

Ms. Williams stated that the State Farm celebration was open to the public, therefore the 

park would remain open for people to enter and exit any portion of the park. 

 

Mr. Patterson, representing Lori Watkins, addressed Council and said that Mrs. Watkins 

was requesting Council’s consideration to approve a proclamation declaring June 7th as 

State Farm Day in Altavista; and read during a ribbon-cutting event at Ms. Watkins’ State 

Farm store front. He said, although the ribbon-cutting would be held on Monday, May 

30th, State Farm’s official anniversary date was June 7th. 

 

Mayor Mattox reminded Mr. Patterson that May 30th was Memorial Day and stated he 

would be out of town the day of the ribbon-cutting, but he would make sure a representative 

of Council would be present. 

 

Councilman Wayne Mitchell made a motion, seconded by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, to 

approve the proposed proclamation, declaring June 7th, 2022, as State Farm Day in the 

Town of Altavista. 
 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes  

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

 

 

Ms. Williams stated there was a process with Altavista On Track (AOT) and the Chamber 

of Commerce and for ribbon-cutting events. She said that staff would collaborate with the 

Chamber and AOT to coordinate State Farm’s ribbon-cutting on May 30th. 

 

 

126



 

Town Council Work Session, April 26, 2022 
 

 

5.2  English Park Boat Ramp Parking Lot – Striping Consideration 

 

Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, referenced the English Park boat 

ramp parking lot and informed Council paving was recently completed of that area. She 

said the Recreation Committee recommended striping the parking lot with the maximum 

number of parking spaces as possible. 

 

Ms. Williams referenced the photo in Council’s agenda packet that gave a visual of the 

proposed striping layout recommended by the Recreation Committee. She said that staff 

believed the layout offered the most parking possible and also recommended the striping 

layout as presented. She asked Council for their input and consideration of approval. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Public Services Director, Tom Fore, and Public Works Manager, Jeff 

Arthur, for their input on the matter. 

 

Both Mr. Fore and Mr. Arthur agreed the proposed layout was the best option. 

 

There being no further comments on this matter, there was a consensus of Town Council 

to accept staff’s recommendation and allow staff to move forward with the proposed 

striping layout as presented for the parking lot in English Park, adjacent to the boat ramp. 

 

 

5.3  Altavista Police Department (APD) – Request to Declare Items as Surplus 

 

Altavista Police Chief, Tommy Merricks, presented Council with a list of items the APD 

would like to declare as “surplus”.  Chief Merricks informed Council the APD was 

working towards being accredited and clearing out old, unusable items was part of that 

process. He also asked for Council’s approval to allow him to use his own judgement 

regarding old uniforms moving forward, so the unused items did not accumulate. Chief 

Merricks asked Council if they had any questions. 

 

Councilman Mitchell asked, if an item was placed on GOVDeals.com to sell, but was not 

sold, what happened to the unsold items. 

 

Chief Merricks stated that most items usually sell within a reasonable timeframe, except 

for uniforms, which he destroyed if not sold. 

 

Mr. Mitchell asked where the acquired funds from the sell of surplus items go to. 

 

Chief Merricks stated the funds went to the town’s General Fund. He said, at a later date, 

he may ask Council to consider allowing the APD to use a portion of those funds for the 

accreditation process. 

 

Mr. Mitchell stated he thought the accreditation process had been completed years ago. 

 

Mayor Mattox informed Council that the Police Chief prior to the previous one had an 

officer start the procedure to be accredited, but the process was never completed. 

 

Chief Merricks assured Town Council that it was one of his goals for the APD to complete 

the accreditation process. He stated the accreditation would also be helpful lower 

insurance costs for APD officers. 

 

There was a consensus of Town Council to allow the Altavista Police Department to 

declare the presented list of items as surplus; and authorized approval for the APD to move 

forward with selling or adequately disposing of the items. The consensus also included 

authorizing Chief Merricks to use his own discretion in the future regarding the disposal 

of old, unusable officer uniforms. 

 

 

 

 

127



 

Town Council Work Session, April 26, 2022 
 

 

6. Updates and Informational Items 

6.1 Grass Mowing Contract – Renewal Update 

Background: 

The Town of Altavista uses an outside contractor to maintain mowing services for six 

town-owned locations. This contract is reviewed annually. 

 

Public Works Manager Jeff Arthur referenced Altavista’s FY2022 mowing contract with 

Tad Myers and stated it had been reviewed and would be renewed for FY2023. He 

informed Council that there was a 30% increase in Mr. Myers' price quote, due to the recent 

increases in fuel costs, however, the contract still remained within the amount budgeted for 

this item. Mr. Arthur said that Mr. Myers indicated, if fuel prices decreased, he would 

adjust his price to reflect the change. 

 

Town Attorney John Eller recommended requiring a “base rate” for fuel costs in the town’s 

mowing contracts, for use when calculating changes (increases or decreases) in fuel costs. 

 

There was a consensus of Town Council to follow the direction of the Town Attorney and 

asked Mr. Arthur to revise the mowing contract to include a fuel cost base rate. 

 

 

6.2 English Park Trail System – Wayfinding Signs, Progress Update 

  

Public Works Manager Jeff Arthur informed Council that the designs had been finalized 

for the wayfinding signs. He stated that Hurt & Proffitt indicated they were finishing the 

last steps in mapping the trail system and the final map would be complete soon for staff’s 

review and approval. He said, after the mapping was complete and the main signs installed, 

the last step for this project would be to incorporate mile markers along the trail system. 

 

Mayor Mattox thanked Mr. Arthur for the work he does for the Town of Altavista. 

 

 

7. Matters from Council 

Mayor Mattox asked Council if they had any additional comments or items for discussion. 

 

▪ Vice Mayor Bennett referenced the wooden pedestrian bridge located at Shreve Park 

and asked staff if they had an update on the replacement project for that bridge. 

 

Public Services Director Tom Fore answered and stated his staff was waiting on the 

assistance from Councilman Higginbotham, which previously offered his assistance 

and guidance on this project. 

 

With no additional question or comments from Town Council, Mayor Mattox asked if Town 

Staff had any additional items for Council to hear or consider that was not on the agenda. 

 

▪ Sharon Williams, Altavista’s Community Development Director, referenced the new 

Spark Innovation Center and informed Council that the renovations on the facility were 

nearly complete. She asked Council to consider touring the center on Tuesday, May 

10th, before their Council meeting started at 6pm.  

 

Town Council unanimously shared their favor in touring the Spark Innovation Center 

and agreed on the May 10th date at 5:30pm. 

 

▪ Altavista Police Chief Tommy Merricks informed Council that recently, Town Staff 

had collectively been in contact with several Moseley Heights residents, mostly within 

the Eudora Lane area. He stated that staff was scheduled to do a walk-through of the 

area the following Tuesday at 3pm, with some of Moseley Heights’ community leaders 

to look at a few issues that the community had concerns about. 

 

128



 

Town Council Work Session, April 26, 2022 
 

 

Chief Merricks also informed Council that he invited the Moseley Heights residents to 

join him and a couple of staff members at the First Church of Jesus, in Moseley Heights, 

at 7pm on the same Tuesday (May 3rd) to discuss any concerns they may have. He 

invited Town Council members to attend if they were available. 

 

▪ Councilman George stated he was recently approached by someone wanting to place a 

water/soda vending machine in English Park next to the splash pad. He reminded 

Council that one side of the bathroom building had electrical outlets on the exterior so 

that would be the most feasible place to have them, if approved. 

 

Mr. George said that he contacted Lynchburg City to inquire what their policy was for 

having vending machines at their parks and he was told the large parks have concession 

stands and the small ones have vending contracts that were reviewed annually. 

 

Mr. George shared his favor with having vending for beverages at English Park and 

asked for Council’s input. 

 

Mayor Mattox stated that Gatorade was a Coke-A-Cola product and would put a 

vending machine where the town wanted it and the town would receive a portion of the 

revenue from the machine(s). 

 

Councilman Emerson said he remembered when both Shreve Park and English Park 

had vending machines located outside the bathroom facilities and shared his favor with 

allowing beverage vending machines again. 

 

There were no additional comments on this matter at this time. 

 

▪ Vice Mayor Bennett informed everyone of a “trash pickup day” being held in Moseley 

Heights on Saturday, April 30th, starting at 8:30am., and starting at the YMCA. 

 

▪ Councilman Lowman referenced the “big blue attraction sign” on Hwy. 29 when 

entering Altavista. He asked if staff had an update on whether the town could utilize 

the sign to advertise the splash pad. 

 

Town Manager Gary Shanaberger stated that the Assistant Town Manager, Matt 

Perkins, was currently working on the project. 

 

Mr. Perkins informed Council that when he contacted VDOT, he was directed to a 

third-party that overseen the signage. He stated he would contact the group and 

continue gathering information regarding what was allowed to be on the highway signs. 

 

▪ Mayor Mattox asked for Council’s input on whether the town should advertise an RFP 

for having a food court inside the Booker Building, located in English Park, Altavista. 

 

Councilman Mitchell reminded Council of the first time an RFP was advertised for the 

item, and no one responded. 

 

Councilman George suggested Council considered allowing the town to build a 

concession stand at English Park and bid the service out on an annual contract. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett reminded Council, when the citizen survey was conducted a 

couple of years prior, the most favorable option was to use the Booker Building as an 

event center. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if the initial RFP was for a specific use or in general. 

 

Altavista’s Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, stated the 

aforementioned RFP was advertised after a feasibility study was conducted on uses for 

the Booker Building. She said the RFP focused on the five top favorable responses 

from the feasibility study. 

 

129



 

Town Council Work Session, April 26, 2022 
 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if any of the five uses included having a food court at the facility. 

 

Ms. Williams answered it did not. She also referenced a previous conversation among 

Council whether to allow food trucks to periodically service English Park, however the 

conversation was not conclusive, and Council made no definitive decision on the matter 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if Council or Staff had any additional items for discussion. 

 

▪ Town Manager Gary Shanaberger referenced Councilman George’s mention of having 

vending machines in English Park. He asked for clarification on whether Council was 

in favor of allowing the service, or if staff was merely to investigate the options for 

Council’s consideration. 

 

Mayor Mattox shared his concerns with the town allowing food trucks or vending 

machines in English Park, he stated he believed the service from outsiders would 

decrease revenue for local business owners. 

 

Councilman Emerson shared his favor with allowing the Town Manager to investigate 

the options available for the town to offer “beverage” vending machines, such as water 

and/or Gatorade, at both English and Shreve Parks; and the potential cost/revenue for 

each option. 

 

 

8. Closed Session 

There was no closed session conducted at this meeting. 

 

 

9. Adjournment 

Mayor Mattox asked if there were any additional comments or concerns from Town Council, 

to which there were none. 

 

The April 26, 2022, Council Work Session was adjourned at 5:44 p.m. 
 

 

 

   __________________________________  

   Michael E. Mattox, Mayor of Altavista 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Gary Shanaberger, Town Manager/Town Clerk 

130



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

The Altavista Town Council held their May 2022 regular meeting in Council Chambers of the 

Town Hall/J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street, on Tuesday, May 10th, at 6 p.m. 

 

1. At six o’clock p.m., Mayor Mike Mattox called the regular meeting to order and presided. 

 

Council Members 

Present:    Vice Mayor Reginald Bennett 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson 

     Mr. Timothy George 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 

     Dr. Scott Lowman 

     Mayor Michael Mattox 

Mr. Wayne Mitchell 

      

Town Staff present:  Mr. Gary Shanaberger, Town Manager 

     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Treasurer/Finance Director 

     Mr. Thomas Merricks, Altavista Chief of Police 

     Mr. Tom Fore, Public Services Director 

     Ms. Sharon D. Williams, Community Development Director 

     Mr. Jeff Arthur, Public Works Manager 

     Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 

     Mrs. Crystal Hailey, Assistant Town Clerk 

  

Pastor Sinclair Hall, First Church of Jesus, gave the invocation for this evening. 

After the invocation, Mayor Mike Mattox led the meeting in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

2. Agenda Adoption 

Mayor Mattox informed everyone of an amendment to the May 10th agenda. 

• Section #8, Item H.:  Wastewater Treatment Plant - Hydraulic System for Sludge Press 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions, comments, or concerns in regard 

to the May 10th meeting agenda, to which there were none. 

 

Councilman Tracy Emerson made a motion, seconded by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, to 

approve the May 10th, 2022, Altavista Town Council Meeting Agenda as amended. 

 

Motion carried 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

3. Recognitions and Presentations 

Mayor Mattox took this opportunity to recognize and congratulate Tom Fore, Altavista’s 

Public Services Director, for the award he recently received from the Commonwealth of 

Virginia for his contributions to not only the Town of Altavista, but also the state. He read 

aloud a few of the words spoken about Mr. Fore at the award ceremony by his colleagues. 

 

Mayor Mattox recited, “the Friend of Rural Water Award was not given out every year, but 

reserved for special individuals that were most deserving by making outstanding contributions 

to their profession in rural water”, and “although semi-retired, he continues to look out for 

Virginia’s water and wastewater operators by serving on boards of their professions”, and  

131



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

“Tom Fore is an amazing role model for water and wastewater operators and has a passion for 

tasks that help his localities thrive and grow”. 

 

Mayor Mattox led Council, Staff, and meeting attendees in a standing ovation for Mr. Fore and 

he thanked him for the good work he continued to do for Altavista and everyone he served. 

 

A. Town of Altavista Personnel Changes – April 2022 

  

Milestone(s): 

None for April 
 

New Hire Listing: 

Matthew Perkins, Assistant Town Manager as of April 1st 
 

Departure Listing: 

None in April 
 

Mayor Mattox recognized Matt Perkins and welcomed him as the town’s new Assistant 

Town Manager. 

 

B. Bluegrass In The Park:  2022 Festival Highlights and 2023 Request 

Tony Clifton, T&C Promotions, shared with Council the results of his first bluegrass 

festival in Altavista; held in English Park on April 3rd, in honor and support of  the 

Children’s Miracle Network. He stated the event did well and, after expenses, he was able 

to donate $2,000 to the Children’s Miracle Network. 

 

Mr. Clifton stated that he would like to host the event again in 2023, however, he believed 

attendance was not what it could be due to other events going on the same weekend, so he 

asked Council to consider allowing him to change the date of the bluegrass festival to the 

last weekend in April (29th) or the first weekend in June (3rd). 

 

Mr. Clifton stated, being this was his first time hosting the event in Altavista, he now knows 

a few things that his team would do differently. He referenced Altavista Fire Company 

Chief John Tucker and said that Mr. Tucker would be assisting T&C Promotions with the 

2023 Bluegrass In The Park festival, to help make the event bigger and better. Mr. Clifton 

stated he was excited to have Mr. Tucker’s experience. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Council for their input on Mr. Clifton’s request to change the date of 

the 2023 bluegrass festival. 

 

Councilman George referenced English Park being closed for the 2022 bluegrass festival 

and asked if the park could remain open during the 2023 event. 

 

Mr. Clifton informed Council that his team was working with Mr. Tucker to develop a plan 

that was viable to the entire community, which included leaving the park open; and 

potentially not having an entry fee for the festival. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Mr. Clifton how soon he would have a draft plan for the 2023 event 

for Council’s review. 

 

Mr. Clifton stated his team was currently working on a plan for next year’s event. He stated 

that having a set date would allow T&C Promotions to secure bands and activities for 

entertainment, and food vendors. 

 

Councilman Mitchell said that he did not have an issue with either date requested. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham asked Community Development Director Sharon Williams if 

she knew of any other events being planned on the same requested dates. 

 

Ms. Williams stated, the only event she knew of that would take place close to the June 3rd 

date was AOT’s 2nd Annual Riverfest, which will be held on the second weekend in May. 

132



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Councilman Emerson reminded everyone that the first weekend in June was known as 

Uncle Billy’s Day Festival weekend for over 70 years. He stated, if Council approved that 

weekend for T&C’s festival, he suggested they “go big” with what they offered at the event 

because the community would be expecting it to be. 

 

Mr. Clifton stated, with Mr. Tucker’s experience with past Uncle Billy’s Day festivals, he 

was confident that T&C could accomplish a large event with multiple activities for all ages. 

 

Councilman Mitchell asked if it was T&C’s intent, if the June 3rd date was approved, to 

use “Uncle Billy” in the event’s name. 

 

Mr. Clifton stated it had not been discussed, but he would be open to suggestions if that 

was Council’s desire. He said his team had discussed changing the name to remove 

bluegrass because they would have other genres of music at the 2023 event. 

 

Councilman Emerson stated that he believed utilizing the reference to Uncle Billy would 

help increase attendance to the festival. 

 

Councilman George stated, while the name did not have to be decided that evening, Mr. 

Clifton had asked Council to consider and approve one of the requested dates. He stated he 

believed June 3rd would also be popular with the community and increase attendance. 

 

Councilman Lowman asked Mr. Clifton if he would be willing to work with volunteers 

from other town organizations. 

 

Mr. Clifton stated, he anticipated the 2023 event to be even larger than the year before, and 

he would appreciate all of the help/volunteers he could get for the festival. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Mr. Clifton how his organization would acquire revenue if the festival 

offered free admission. 

 

Mr. Clifton answered stating the revenue would be generated with vender setup fees and 

also, a percentage of the carnival’s revenue would go to T&C Promotions, which would 

distribute the revenue between the band/entertainment and Children’s Miracle Network. 

 

Councilman Emerson informed Mr. Clifton that Uncle Billy’s Day traditionally started on 

the first Friday night in June, and asked him if he intended to do the same with his event. 

 

Mr. Clifton stated he favored doing so and, if approved by Council, he would discuss the 

possibility with his team to start the event activities and music on Friday, June 2nd. 

 

There was a consensus of Town Council to approve June 2nd and June 3rd as the new dates 

for T&C Promotion’s 2nd Annual Festival In The Park in Altavista’s English Park. 

 

Councilman George asked if there would be alcohol sold at the event. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett said, if so, a “beer garden” area could be roped off for patrons only. 

 

Mr. Clifton stated he had experience with offering beer at some the events his team had 

hosted, however, with Altavista, he wanted to make sure the festival was conducted to 

satisfy both the town and town citizens. He said there would not be alcohol sold at the 2023 

festival in Altavista, but he would keep the option in mind for future Altavista events. 

 

Mayor Mattox and Council thanked Mr. Clifton and his team, T&C Productions, for their 

interest in Altavista and for bringing the Festival In The Park to town. 

 

Town Manager Gary Shanaberger stated that staff would verify that the June 2nd and 

June3rd dates were available for the festival and relay the information to Mr. Clifton. 

 

Mayor Mattox thanked staff for coordinating such events in English Park with the Altavista 

Area YMCA, so that no events interfered with their community activities in the park. 

133



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

C. Altavista Public Works Department - Proclamation 

Mayor Mattox shared his appreciation for the Town of Altavista’s Public Works 

Department and stated it was his honor to declare the following proclamation: 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Altavista relies on Public Works employees to ensure the 

safety, health, and well-being of its citizens and visitors; and  

WHEREAS, this year's theme "Stronger Together” celebrates the vital role public 

works plays in connecting us all together. At its cornerstone, the Public Works 

Department provides, maintains, and improves the structures and services that assure 

a higher quality of life for our community.   

WHEREAS, streets, roads and bridges keep us linked together from coast to coast, 

they allow our community a resource to grow and prosper; and  

WHEREAS, Public Works professionals plan, build, operate, and maintain 

infrastructure including refuse disposal, public facilities and parks, and other 

structures and facilities essential to serving Town citizens and visitors; and  

WHEREAS, our Town is safer and more efficient where citizens can enjoy the 

quality of life that makes Altavista special because of the dedication of Public Works 

professionals; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Altavista joins the American Public Works Association 

and other agencies and organizations in recognizing the contributions of Public 

Works professionals to the health, safety, welfare of the Town;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Michael E. Mattox, Mayor of the Town of Altavista, do 

hereby proclaim May 16-22, 2022, as 
 

“PUBLIC WORKS WEEK” 
 

in the Town of Altavista, and command its observance to Town citizens and visitors.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affix the seal of the 

Town of Altavista on this the 10th day of May 2022. 

  

Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett made a motion, seconded by Councilman Scott Lowman, to 

approve the proclamation declaring May 16th-22nd, 2022, as Public Works Week in the 

Town of Altavista. 

 

Motion carried 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 Mayor Mattox presented Jeff Arthur, Public Works Manager, with the proclamation. 
 

 

4. Citizen’s Time  

Mayor Mattox asked if there were any citizen(s) present wishing to address Council with a 

comment or concern, to which there were none. 

 

 

5. Town/Community Partner Updates 

A. Altavista Area Chamber of Commerce (the Chamber) 

There was no one present at this meeting to represent the Chamber. 

134



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

B. Altavista On Track (AOT) 
 

AOT’s Vice President, Regina Adams, briefed Town Council on AOT’s upcoming events. 

 

• Mrs. Adams reminded everyone that AOT’s 1st Annual Riverfest would take place 

from 12noon-6pm on Saturday, May 14th, at English Park. She said the event was free 

to the public and would offer music, food trucks, and activities for all age groups. 

 

• Mrs. Adams referenced AOT’s vacant Executive Director position and stated that AOT 

completed their interview process and would announce their new director soon. 

 

• Mrs. Adams informed Council that Kaitlyn Smith, owner of Perfect Canvas Salon, 

completed the three-month cycle with AOT’s Downtown Business Investment Grant 

Program. She stated that Ms. Smith’s salon was thriving and AOT planned to host a 

ribbon-cutting event for her business. 

 

Mrs. Adams stated that AOT recently received the last $5,000 payment from Virginia’s 

Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) to be used towards 

Altavista’s aforementioned grant program. She stated that AOT intended to utilize a 

portion of those funds to assist the recipients of the grant program with advertising and 

marketing their small businesses. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett asked if there was a rate date scheduled for the upcoming Riverfest. 

 

Mrs. Adams answered not at that time. She stated that AOT would be meeting with 

Altavista’s Public Works Manager, Jeff Arthur, that week to discuss the possibility of 

moving venders to the paved areas of the park, and the potential of cancelation if strong 

weather persists. 

 

Mayor Mattox thanked Mrs. Adams for the updates and thanked AOT for the work they do 

for the Town of Altavista and its community. 

 

 

6. Consent Agenda  

• April 2022 Financial Reports 

• APD Surplus Items 

• Approval of Council Meeting Minutes: 

o March 22nd, 2022, Work Session 

o March 29th extended Work Session 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions, comments, or concerns in regard 

to the May 10th Consent Agenda, to which there were none. 

 

Councilman Wayne Mitchell made a motion, seconded by Councilman Tracy Emerson, to 

approve the May 10, 2022, Council Meeting Consent Agenda as presented. 

 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

  

135



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

7. Public Hearings 

▪ FY2023 Town Budget and FY2023-2027 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 

 

Mayor Mattox opened the hearing for public comments at 6:30pm. 

With not public comments, Mayor Mattox closed this hearing at 6:31pm. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions or comments regarding 

the proposed FY2023 Budget and FY2023-2027 CIP. 

 

Councilman Mitchell referenced the request of Council to start the budget process 

earlier for the 2023 fiscal year and he thanked Town Staff for working diligently to 

achieve the task. Town Council concurred and also thanked staff for their hard work. 

 

▪ FY2023 TOA Proposed Water and Sewer Rate Increases 

 

Mayor Mattox opened the hearing for public comments at 6:32pm. 

With not public comments, Mayor Mattox closed this hearing at 6:33pm. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions or comments regarding 

the FY2023 proposed utility rate increases, to which there were none. 

 

▪ Dearing Ford Industrial Park – Boundary-line Adjustment 

 

Town Attorney John Eller explained the reason for this public hearing. He referenced 

the town’s recent purchase of an 83 acre parcel from the Fauntleroy family and stated 

it was the town’s intent to secure a boundary-line adjustment to bring the property into 

town limits as an addition to the Dearing Ford Industrial Park. 

 

Mayor Mattox opened the hearing for public comments at 6:34pm. 

With not public comments, Mayor Mattox closed this hearing at 6:35pm. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions, comments, or concerns 

regarding the Dearing Ford boundary-line adjustment agreement or the resolution 

between the Town of Altavista and Campbell County, to which there were none 

 

Councilman Wayne Mitchell made a motion, seconded by Councilman Tracy Emerson, 

to approve the resolution/agreement between the Town of Altavista and Campbell 

County regarding the aforementioned 83 acre parcel boundary-line adjustment. 

 

Motion carried. 

Vote:   Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

8. New Business 

A. Donated Park Benches 
 

Public Services Director Tom Fore referenced the current cost for donating a bench to the 

town, $900, and informed Council, due to material cost increases, the current dollar 

amount for the items to donate a bench totaled $1,160 (bench $700, concrete $350, and 

plaque $110); leaving the town to pay the remaining $260. 

136



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Councilman Mitchell asked if the town charged an installation fee to place the benches. 

 

Mr. Fore stated the town did not charge labor costs for installation, only material costs. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett referenced the $1,160 cost and recommended charging an even dollar 

amount of $1,200. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated, due to the potential of material costs to continue to 

increase, he concurred with the Vice Mayor. 

 

With a motion by Councilman Jay Higginbotham, seconded by Councilman Tracy 

Emerson, Town Council approved staff’s request to increase the cost to donate a park 

bench to the town for English Park’s trail system from $900 to $1,200. 

 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

B. Special Event Permit Request:  Davis Family Reunion 

 

Altavista Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, briefed Council on the 

details of this request. She stated the Davis family reunion event was usually held inside 

the Booker Building; however, this year’s request was to hold the reunion outside at 

English Park, in the field across from the splash pad.  

 

Ms. Williams stated that Kathy Davis, the family member submitting the request, it would 

be less formal holding the event outside and would allow the family to enjoy having 

outdoor games, such as volleyball and corn hole. She said Ms. Davis indicated there would 

be no more than 50 people in attendance at the reunion, and no alcohol would be served. 

 

Ms. Williams stated that all Town Departments and the YMCA had received and reviewed 

the request and no objections had been raised. She asked if Council had any questions. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Council if they had any questions or concerns with the Davis family 

reunion Special Event Permit request, to which there were none. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Tracy Emerson, seconded by Councilman Wayne 

Mitchell, and Town Council approved the Special Event Permit request by Kathy Davis 

to utilize a portion of English Park, across from the splash pad, to hold the Davis family 

reunion on Saturday, June 4th, from 2-7pm. 

 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

     Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

 

 

137



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

C. Special Event Permit Request:  AOT, Vista BBQ Festival 

 

Altavista Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, referenced Council’s 

approval at their November 9th, 2021, Town Council Meeting to allow Altavista On Track 

(AOT) to host their 2nd Annual Vista BBQ Festival on Saturday, October 1st, 2022. She 

stated the event was recently approved to be a Kansas City Barbeque Society (KCBS) 

“sanctioned event”, and was expected to draw competitors all across the east. 

 

Ms. Williams stated that AOT was asked to allow competitors to begin arriving on 

Thursday to set up and rest before they begin cooking on Friday. She stated, at that time, 

AOT was requesting Council’s approval to utilize the large field at English Park for the 

BBQ festival competitors to arrive on Thursday, September 29th. She stated, no other 

areas of the park would be impacted. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Council if they had any questions. 

 

Councilman George asked if AOT intended to close the entire park for this event. 

 

Ms. Williams stated most of the park would be closed during the festival, except for the 

boat ramp/river access area adjacent to the lower parking lot of the park. She stated the 

park would not be closed until the Friday before the event. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Tracy Emerson, seconded by Vice Mayor Bennett, to 

approve AOT’s request to amend their Special Event Permit request and allow the use of 

English Park for the 2022 Vista BBQ Festival starting on Thursday, September 29th. 

 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

D. DAWN (Donation A Week Neighbor): Environmental Assessment 

 

Altavista Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, referenced the Town 

of Altavista’s award of a Brownfields Investment Grant from the Virginia Brownfields 

Restoration and Economic Redevelopment Assistant Fund (VBAF), which they used for 

town projects and to help some small business owners in the downtown area with 

environmental assessments of their properties. 

 

Ms. Williams  informed Council that DAWN (Donation A Week Neighbor) was currently 

under contract to purchase the former Moorefield Cleaners property, located at 717 7th 

Street. She stated it was DAWN’s intent to open their food pantry at the new location if 

their Special Use Permit (SUP) was approved by Town Council.  

 

Ms. Williams stated, due to the types of chemicals used at the dry cleaners, DAWN desired 

an environmental assessment conducted before occupying the building. She said the 

assessment would cost approximately $4,000, and it was staff’s recommendation to use a 

portion of the town’s remaining Brownfields grant funds ($191,273.25) to cover the cost 

of the environmental assessment for DAWN. 

 

Ms. Williams also asked if it was Council’s desire for staff to take care of this type of 

request, pertaining to the remaining Brownfields grant funds, moving forward. 

 

 

138



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Councilman Higginbotham shared his favor in accepting staff’s recommendation to fund 

DAWN’s environmental assessment. He stated he would rather Council continue making 

the decisions for disbursing the funds rather than staff. 

 

Councilman Mitchell asked if there was a timeframe in which the town had to use the 

VBAF grant funds or if they would be required to forfeit the remaining amount. 

 

Ms. Williams said she didn’t believe there was a deadline for using the VBAF funds. She 

also reminded Council the funds were for testing, not remediation, so if any contaminates 

were found, a separate application had to be submitted for the remediation efforts. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham asked Councilman Lowman if the town’s Brownfields funds 

could be used in testing for PCBs at the Wastewater Plant’s overflow pond. 

 

Dr. Lowman stated the funds were intended for initial testing of a site, not for the 

continuation of testing and not for remediation purposes. 

 

Dr. Lowman also shared his favor with assisting DAWN with their needed assessment. 

He stated he believed the Brownfields program was a great tool for a locality to utilize in 

these instances. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked for Council’s input on whether they wanted staff to make the 

disbursement decisions for the Brownfields funds, or they wanted each request to come 

before Council for approval consideration. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett shared his favor in staff handling the task, and with Council only 

meeting twice per month, the process would move quicker if staff was authorized to do so 

 

Councilman Mitchell suggested Council set a “not to exceed” dollar amount for allowing 

staff to make monetary decisions regarding the town’s Brownfields funds, to which 

Council concurred. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked what dollar amount staff felt comfortable with in handling this task. 

 

Ms. Williams stated a Phase I assessment usually cost from $4,000-$5,000. She suggested 

a $10,000 limit to staff’s authorization for this purpose. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Scott Lowman, and seconded by Vice Mayor Bennett, 

to authorized Town Staff the ability to approve Brownfields fund requests that were 

$10,000 and under. The motion also approved staff’s recommendation for the town to 

cover the $4,000 cost of DAWN’s environmental assessment at their new location, 717 

7th Street, formally known as Moorefield Cleaners. 

 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

E. DAWN (Donation A Week Neighbor):  Special Use Permit - Fee Waiver Request 

 

Altavista Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, referenced DAWN’s 

intent to relocate their food pantry to a new location, 717 7th Street. She stated the town’s 

zoning ordinance required DAWN to acquire a Special Use Permit (SUP) to locate and 

operate their food pantry at the facility formally occupied by Moorefield Cleaners. 

139



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Ms. Williams stated that DAWN was asking for Council’s consideration to waive the $400 

application fee for the required SUP. She said, with the timing being so close to the end 

of the fiscal year, the $400 could be absorbed in the Community Development budget. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Jay Higginbotham, and seconded by Vice Mayor 

Bennett, to approve DAWN’s request and waive the $400 Special Use Permit application 

fee for the relocation of their food pantry to 717 7th Street, formally a cleaners. 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

F. Spark Innovation Center Update 
 

Altavista Community Development Director, Sharon D. Williams, shared with Council a 

brief update on the Spark Innovation Center project. She stated that Jacob Caldwell, 

Dominion Seven, a Spark center design team member, was also present to offer additional 

updates and answer any questions that Council may have. 

 

Ms. Williams stated the Spark Innovation Center was a collaborative effort between the 

Town of Altavista, Altavista on Track, the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization 

Commission, the USDA, and others. She said the center would not have been possible 

without the small business owners and local leaders who championed this dream.  

 

Ms. Williams thanked Council for touring the Spark Innovation Center before their 

meeting that evening and shared with everyone the first-floor layout of the center. 

 

• (4) offices for rent w/ an additional office for Spark Manager 

• (2) 6-person conference rooms, convertible to one large room 

• Makerspace, with equipment  

• Focus booths/work cubicles 

• (2) phone booths 

• (4) standup workstations 

• Lounge area 

 

Ms. Williams stated the substantial completion date for this project was June 1st, 2022, 

with an open date tentatively scheduled for August 1st. She shared with Council the “next 

steps” in the process to make this happen. 

 

Ms. Williams said that an employee needed to be hired to run the day-to-day operations, 

which included learning to operate the equipment on site in order to assist clients. 

 

Ms. Williams informed Council the furniture for the makerspace had been selected, but 

not ordered. She stated, when ordered, there was a 6-8 week lead time for delivery and 

would need to be assembled when received. Ms. Williams reminded Council that the town 

appropriated funds in the FY2022 Community Development budget for contractual 

services for the Spark Innovation Center project, which could be utilized to pay for 

assembling the aforementioned furniture for the makerspace. 

 

Ms. Williams shared a few other items that would need to be completed before the Spark 

center’s opening. 
 

• Turn on internet:  $930/month (36 mo.) - existing contract with River Street 

• Accept phone quote (internet-based phones): $290/month - River Street 

140



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

• Computers, Audiovisual Equipment, Scheduling Tablets need to be installed – 

River City (currently not under contract) 

• Marketing campaign needed to begin 90 days prior to opening 

• Installation of pole and transformer 

 

Mr. Jacob Caldwell, Dominion Seven, stated the work order for the pole and transformer 

was submitted to Dominion Power and Town Staff was awaiting the cost and a scheduling 

date for installation, potentially three months out. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham referenced the $930 monthly internet service fee for the Spark 

Innovation Center and asked if the center needed that much service. 

 

Councilman Lowman stated the internet the Spark Center would have was the equivalate 

of a home service, times twenty. He stated, having such high quality internet was also an 

opportunity for the town to extend the service to Town Hall and potentially English Park. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked for details on the cost to use the amenities being offered at the Spark 

Innovation Center and if those fees would cover the cost of running the facility. 

 

Ms. Williams encouraged everyone to visit the Spark Innovation Center website, which 

showed the cost for daily, weekly, and monthly service, the cost for a single walk-in visit, 

and an overview of the multiple services that the center offered. She stated the Spark 

Innovation Center should be self-sufficient by its third year in operation. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham shared his concern with the town having to hire an additional 

employee to oversee the Spark Center. He stated he thought the Altavista On Track (AOT) 

Executive Director/Altavista Main Street Coordinator’s office would be housed at the 

Spark Center to cover the task. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett stated it was the desire of the AOT Board to no longer be under the 

“umbrella” of the Town of Altavista and the Executive Director’s office would no longer 

be located at Town Hall, which meant it would also not be located at the Spark Center. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Ms. Williams to bring Council back an overview of 1), what it was 

going to cost to operate the Spark Center monthly, 2) the fees to use the Spark Center 

amenities, and 3) an estimate of the Spark Center’s projected annual revenue. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham suggested the Spark Innovation Center be a topic of discussion 

at Town Council’s upcoming retreat/strategic work session. 

 

Mayor Mattox stated the retreat facilitator, Kim Payne, would be in touch with all Council 

members for their input on topics for the retreat. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett suggested staff gather operational and expense details of similar 

centers in the surrounding area for insight on projecting future costs for the Spark Center. 

 

Ms. Williams moved forward in her presentation and referenced Phase II of the Spark 

Innovation Center Project (the second floor concept) as laid out in the project’s feasibility 

study, which would provide additional offices and conference room. She shared with 

Council the items that needed completion before the second floor could be occupied. 
 

• Installation of lift for handicap accessibility 

• Conversion of existing bathroom to unisex bathroom 

• Complete remodeling the upstairs kitchen 

• Removal of paneled wainscotting throughout upstairs 

• Demolition of some interior walls and new walls and doorways installed 

• Additional wiring, lights, and electrical outlets 

• Install new floor covering 
 

Mayor Mattox suggested, if approved, to install the pit and shaft as soon as possible, so 

not to interfere with the Spark Innovations Center’s operations on the first floor. 

141



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Ms. Williams stated that staff drafted three options for Council’s consideration pertaining 

to installing the pit for the handicap assessable platform lift. 
 

Option 1:  shaft and pit construction only 

Option 2:  install pit, shaft, and lift in preparation for 2nd floor renovation at a later date 

Option 3:  full completion of Phase II - all lift components and 2nd floor renovation 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated, if the 2nd floor was not renovated, there would be no 

need to install an elevator/lift. 

 

Ms. Williams concurred, but reminded Council that the 2nd floor was currently zoned 

residential, and would have to be renovated to be useful for the Spark Center, therefore a 

lift would be required to make the facility handicapped assessable and up to code. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated, if the town moved forward with Phase II and installing 

the shaft and pit for the second floor lift, that area would need to be blocked off from all 

other working areas due to dust and debris. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham stated he believed the town should be prudent and postpone Phase II 

of the Spark Innovation Center Project until the town could analyze how well the 

community responded and used the first floor of the facility. 

 

Councilman Mitchell agreed with Mr. Higginbotham to postpone Phase II of the Spark 

project. He stated the initial concept, which included the second floor, was changed after 

a feasibility study was conducted and the town decided that all items/services would be 

available on the first floor in order to provide everyone, handicap accessibility included, 

the opportunity to use the Spark Innovation Center; and the second floor would only offer 

additional office spaces and conference rooms. 

 

Mr. Mitchell reminded Council that the feasibility study for this project was only viable 

because it included an existing town employee (Main Street Coordinator) overseeing the 

day-to-day activities in the Spark Center where their office would be located. He stated 

Phase I of the project was already over budget and stated he favored postponing Phase II. 

 

Ms. Williams stated, at that time, staff was seeking direction from Council for what they 

desired as the next steps pertaining to the Spark Innovation Center Project. 

 

Mayor Mattox referenced the grants that the town received for this project and asked Ms. 

Williams if it was feasible for the town to slow this project down by postponing the second 

floor renovation, until the town could evaluate the needs of the community for the facility. 

 

Ms. Williams stated that the town may be asked to pay back the $184,000 grant from the 

Virginia Tobacco Commission. 

 

Councilman Emerson stated, pertaining to the aforementioned grants the town received 

for the Spark Innovation Center Project, he asked if there was anything the town had not 

done that it was required to do to obtain/keep the grant. 

 

Ms. Williams answered there was not. She stated the town had completed every 

contractual item required for the grant process and informed Council that the grants 

received were for the first floor only – Phase I of the Spark Innovation Center Project. 

 

Councilman George asked if the elevator (lift) could be installed on the exterior of the 

building to decrease the amount of disruption to the first floor working spaces. 

 

Mr. Caldwell answered yes, however, the initial design for the lift was interior and would 

have to be revised to meet the specifications of an exterior plan, which would likely 

increase the cost of installing the item. 

 

142



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated, if the town decided to move forward with either option 

pertaining to installing an elevator and second floor renovations, he suggested conducting 

the work at night or on weekends, so not to disrupt activity of the first floor during the day 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett referenced Abbott Laboratories in Altavista and said the facility used 

floor-to-ceiling plastic barriers to keep construction zones contained. He suggested the 

town use the same if moving forward with the elevator was approved. 

 

Mr. Caldwell stated that was an option and shared his appreciation for the town thinking 

“outside the box” to find solutions/options for installing the elevator. He reminded Council 

that working at night and on weekends would likely increase the project cost of this item. 

 

Councilman Emerson stated that he did not believe the town needed an elevator to the 

second floor if the second floor offered the same services and amenities as the first floor. 

He asked staff to investigate whether the town was required to add an elevator to Spark 

Innovation Center if the second floor was not renovated at that time. 

 

Councilman Lowman suggested the town decide as soon as possible whether or not to 

install an elevator in the Spark Innovation Center, in order to keep the project moving 

forward and an opening date scheduled soon, which would show the grantors that the town 

had completed all items required from the received grants. 

 

Councilman Mitchell stated he was not in favor of installing the aforementioned elevator 

and he was also not in favor of spending additional funds for Phase II of the Spark 

Innovation Center Project until Phase I was complete, the center was open, and the town 

confirmed that the facility was being utilized as projected/desired by the town. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham stated he did not believe it was feasible for the town to install 

an elevator in the Spark Center until there was a definite need to do so. He stated the town 

may never have the need to renovate the second floor, therefore, if the elevator was 

installed, the town would have wasted funds that could have been used elsewhere. 

 

Councilman Lowman said he believed the town’s main desire at that time was to complete 

Phase I (the first floor operations) of the Spark Innovation Center and open for use. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett suggested staff investigate using local businesses/corporations to 

help fund the Spark Innovation Center, by sponsoring specific work areas within the center 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any additional questions, comments, or 

concerns regarding Ms. Williams’ presentation pertaining to the installation of an elevator 

on the interior of the Spark Innovation Center in preparation of renovating the second floor 

of the facility (Phase II), to which there were none. 

 

There was a consensus of Town Council not to install an elevator in the Spark Innovation 

Center at that time and to postpone Phase II of the project until such time as the second 

floor was deemed needed for use. 

 

Ms. Williams asked Council for a moment to discuss funding for the Spark Innovation 

Center Coordinator position. 

 

Councilman Emerson reminded Council that the initial plan was to have an existing 

member of town staff to occupy the Spark Center and oversee the day-to-day operations. 

He stated, although that person was no longer going to be the town’s Main Street 

Coordinator (AOT Executive Director), he still believed the town could utilize an existing 

staff member for the task. 

 

Councilman George asked what the person in that position would be responsible for. 

 

 

143



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Ms. Williams shared some of the tasks the Spark Coordinator would be responsible for: 

• Scheduling 

• Invoicing 

• Collecting fees for Spark services 

• Managing equipment offered in the Spark Center’s makerspace 

• Small Business Programs (such as the Chamber of Commerce “Lunch & Learn”) 

 

Mayor Mattox asked that Council consider postponing this discussion until the Town 

Manager, Gary Shanaberger, had time to consider all options pertaining to this matter. 

 

There was a unanimous consensus of Town Council to do so. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham suggested the matter also be discussed at Council’s upcoming 

retreat/strategic work session, to which the Town Manager and Council concurred. 

 

 

G. Special Event Permit Request:  Altavista Outreach & Enrichment Organization 

 

Background: 

Summer SPARK is a free learning and enrichment program in Altavista for ages 4-12 

years old. They meet each Wednesday during the summer and provide games, activities, 

stories, and a snack. Each child leaves with a book and other essentials.  

 

Sharon Williams, Altavista’s Community Development Director, informed Town Council 

that the Altavista Outreach and Enrichment Organization (AOE) had once again applied 

for a Special Event Permit to host its Summer SPARK Program. She stated the AOE was 

requesting the use of Shreve Park from 9:30-10:30 a.m.; and the John Mosley Memorial 

Park from 11:00am-12:00pm on June 8th, 15th, 22nd, 29th, and July 6th. 

 

Mrs. Jane Green, AOE Representative, was present to answer any questions Council had. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if Council had any questions pertaining to the Summer SPARK 

Program, to which there were none. Mayor Mattox thanked Mrs. Green and the AOE for 

the work they do for the Altavista community. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Tracy Emerson, and seconded by Councilman Jay 

Higginbotham, to approve the Special Use Permit request submitted by the Altavista 

Outreach and Enrichment organization to host their Summer Spark Program and both 

Shreve and John Moseley Memorial Parks, every Wednesday in June and on July 6th. 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 

 

 

H. Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP): Hydraulic Pump Replacement 

 

Mr. Tom Fore, Altavista’s Public Services Director, referenced the Altavista Wastewater 

Treatment Plant (WWTP) and informed Council that the WWTP’s hydraulic pump for the 

sludge press system had prematurely failed and needed replacing. 

 

Mr. Fore requested Council’s consideration to allow staff to utilize unexpended funds in 

the FY2022 budget to cover the $10,300 cost to replace the hydraulic pump.  

144



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any questions in regard to staff’s request. 

 

Councilman Mitchell asked if any other components of the sludge press needed replacing. 

 

Mr. Fore stated only the hydraulic pump needed replacing at that time. He stated it was 

his intent to purchase a backup hydraulic pump in six years and include the item in the 

CIP every four years moving forward, in order to cover the cost of the item when needed. 

 

A motion was made by Councilman Jay Higginbotham, and seconded by Councilman 

Tracy Emerson, to approve staff’s request. 
 

Motion carried. 

Vote:    Dr. Scott Lowman  Yes 

Mr. Tim George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

     Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

     Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

    Mr. Wayne Mitchell  Yes 
 

 

9. Unfinished Business 

There were no unfinished business items to discuss on this date. 
 

 

10. Reports and Communication 

 

A. Town Council 2022 Strategic Planning Retreat/Work Session 

Town Manager, Gary Shanaberger, updated Council on the details of their upcoming 

retreat.  He stated the Tuesday, June 7th date had been confirmed with the retreat facilitator 

Kimble Payne, The Berkley Group, and the Altavista Train Station conference room was 

reserved for that meeting date as well, from 12noon to 5pm. 

 

Mr. Shanaberger referenced Council’s requirement to have FOIR training every two years 

in office. He suggested having the training at 10:30am in the large conference room at 

Town Hall, the morning of the June retreat. He stated lunch would be served at 11:30am 

at the Train Station before the start of the meeting. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham asked if the FOIR training could take place at the Train Station 

allowing Council to eat lunch during the training to save time. 

 

Mr. Shanaberger stated the Train Station did not offer the capability to broadcast the web 

link needed to complete the training. He suggested Council bring their laptops to the 

meeting and take the training all together, or if they preferred, Council could take the 

training at home and inform staff when they complete the training in order to keep the 

required records. 

 

There was a consensus of Town Council to take the FOIR training on their on time and, 

for official records, inform Town Staff when completed. 

 

B. April 2022 Departmental Reports 

 

C. Council Monthly Calendars - May and June 

The Departmental Reports and Council Calendars were delivered to Town Council with 

their May Regular Council Meeting Agenda Pre-Packet.  

 

 

145



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Mayor Mattox asked the Town Manager and Department Directors if they had any 

comments pertaining to the monthly reports, to which there were none. 

 

D. Informational Items 

Assistant Town Manager, Matt Perkins, updated Town Council on a few items they 

previously asked staff to investigate further. 

 

• Hwy. 29 (Blue) Directional Signage 

Mr. Perkins stated that VDOT had a third-party overseeing the administration of 

these signs. He informed Council that he had a meeting scheduled that week with 

the project managers of the directional signs; to discuss Altavista’s needs and the 

cost to advertise on the signs, including Avoca, Dalton’s Landing, English Park, 

and Altavista’s Visitor Center, soon to be located at the Staunton River Memorial 

Library. He said he would bring information to Council as he received it. 

 

• English Park Vending Machine 

Mr. Perkins stated that he met with Altavista’s Public Works staff to gather their 

thoughts and any concerns they may have regarding the potential of having a 

vending machine/machines at English Park. He stated Public Works had no issues 

with the town installing vending machines. 

 

Mr. Perkins asked Council if they were ready for staff to move forward with this 

project and advertise for RFPs; and if so, was their desire to have both snack and 

beverage vending machines, or beverage machines only. 

 

Mayor Mattox referenced the multiple drink cans that were left on the ground all 

over the park during the previous time that vending machines were located there. 

He stated, as long as Public Works was ok with having the vending machine(s) at 

English Park, then he would support the item. 

 

There was a consensus of Town Council to allow staff to move forward with RFPs 

for the English Park Vending Machine Project. 

 

• Altavista Community Events Calendar 

Mr. Perkins informed Council that staff continued to work on Council’s request to 

establish a Community Events Calendar for the town’s website. He stated that he 

and Mrs. Hailey, Assistant Town Clerk, would work to draft a guideline policy for 

the calendar and bring Council the draft for review at a later date/work session. 

 

• Marketing Flyer for Altavista 

Mr. Perkins informed Council that he recently reached out to local economic 

developers within the region for their input on what they would like to see on such 

“brag sheet” from a locality. He asked Council who their intended audience would 

be, and what size they wanted the product be; a full-sized flyer or postcard size. 

 

Mayor Mattox suggested using a postcard sized mailing for this project. 

 

Councilman Emerson suggested including the town’s vacant commercial buildings 

on the promotional item. 

 

Councilman Mitchell stated that Altavista’s last Economic Director, Dennis Jarvis, 

drafted a similar template for a previous project.  He told Mr. Perkins that he would 

be happy to share the item with him as a starting point for this current project.  

 

 

146



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Mr. Mitchell shared his favor with using both an 8x10 sized flyer and a postcard 

to produce a successful outcome. He said that he believed Town Staff and the 

AEDA could work together to achieve the result the town was looking for. 

 

11. Matters from Council 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Town Council if they had any additional concerns or items for discussion. 

 

▪ Vice Mayor Bennett referenced the Lynch Creek Sewer line Replacement Project and 

asked Tom Fore, Public Services Director, if the pipe currently at the site was the 

permanent product. 

 

Mr. Fore answered stating the current pipes were temporary and would be replaced with 

the permanent sewer pipes once the larger sections were completed. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham asked what size the new sewer line was that was being 

installed, to which Mr. Fore stated Menden Pipe was installing 10” pipe for this project. 

 

▪ Councilman Emerson asked for an update on the Vista Theater Project. 

 

Altavista’s Community Development Director Sharon D. Williams stated that she would 

provide Town Council with an update pertaining to the theater at their May Work Session. 

 

Councilman Higginbotham suggested the Vista Theater Project also be a topic of 

discussion at Council’s upcoming retreat (strategic work session) on June 7th. 

 

Mayor Mattox reminded Council there were many items of interest to be discussed at the 

retreat and Council would address the most important items first and work their way down 

from there. He reminded Council that Mr. Kimble, retreat facilitator, would be contacting 

each Council member for their thoughts to gather the main topics of interest. 

 

▪ Councilman Mitchell referenced the mister purchase previously approved by Council for 

use to address the overflow pond issue at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. He asked for 

an update on this project. 

 

Mr. Tom Fore, Public Services Director, stated the initial check for the required 10% down 

to hold the price had been sent, 70% will be due ninety days before delivery, and the 

remaining balance due when the equipment was deliverer and on site.  

 

Mr. Mitchell stated he was asking to determine if the item could be discussed at the 

upcoming Council retreat, which it could not because the project was already approved 

and moving forward. 

 

Mayor Mattox reminded Town Council that the purpose of the “Matters From Council” section 

of their meeting agendas was an opportunity for Council Members to request information from 

Town Staff or to request the consideration of Council for an item of their interest to be placed 

on a future agenda for further discussion. He stated it was not the time to have a lengthy 

discussion on an item. 

 

12. Closed Session 
 

I move that the Altavista Town Council convene in closed session in accordance with the 

provisions set out in the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 

 

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(3) Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public 

purpose, or of the disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open meeting 

would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public body 

 

147



Town Council Regular Meeting May 10th, 2022 
 

 

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(5) Discussion concerning a prospective business or industry or the 

expansion of an existing industry where no previous announcement has been made of the business’ 

or industry’s interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community. 

 

The motion was made by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, seconded by Councilman Jay 

Higginbotham. 

 

Motion carried. Mr. Tracy Emerson Yes Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

VOTE:  Mr. Wayne Mitchell Yes Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett Yes 

Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Dr. Scott Lowman Yes 

 

Town Council went into Closed Session at 8:03 p.m. 

Notice was given that Council was back in regular session at 8:28 p.m. 

 

FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Bennett, seconded by 

Councilman Tracy Emerson, to adopt the certification of a closed meeting.  

 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING WHEREAS, the Town Council has convened a 

closed meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with 

provisions of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the town council 

that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Town Council hereby certifies, to the best of each 

member’s knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting 

requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which this certification 

resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion 

convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed, or considered by the Town Council. 

 

VOTE:   Mr. Wayne Mitchell Yes Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett  Yes 

   Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes  Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Dr. Scott Lowman Yes Mayor Mike Mattox  Yes 

   Mr. Tracy Emerson Yes 

 

Per Town Manager Gary Shanaberger, there were no actions taken by Town Council from this 

closed session. 

 

 

13. Adjournment 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if there was anything else to bring before Town Council or any additional 

comments or concerns from Council, to which there were none.  

  

Mayor Mattox adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 

 

 

________________________ 

Michael Mattox, Mayor 

 

       __________________________ 

       Gary Shanaberger, Town Clerk, 

       Town Manager 

148



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 6.D
CONSENT AGENDA
Title: English Park "Beverage" Vending Machine
Staff Resource: Matt Perkins, Assistant Town Manager
 

Action(s):

Approve this item under the July 12th Consent Agenda.

Explanation:

This approval authorizes Staff to move forward with the bid process for a vender to place a beverage
vending machine at English Park, specifically at the restroom area.

Background:

Town Council authorized the approval of this item at their June 28th work session.

Funding Source(s):

N / A

Attachments:  (click item to open)

149



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 6.E
CONSENT AGENDA
Title: Resolution of Purchase - Addition to McMinnis Springs
Staff Resource: Gary Shanaberger, Town Manager
 

Action(s):

Approve this item on the July 12th Consent Agenda.

Explanation:

At their June 28 work session, there was a unanimous consensus of Town Council to place this item on
the July 12 regular meeting consent agenda for official approval.
Re: the purchase of 22.6 acres as an addition of protective land for the McMinnis Spring property, a
water source for the Town of Altavista.

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. Resolution 6.28.22-Tardy property purchased for McMinnis Springs

150

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1462010/Resolution_6.28.22-Tardy_property_purchased_for_McMinnis_Springs.pdf


15
1



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 6.F
CONSENT AGENDA
Title: Utilities Purchase Resolution - from CCUSA for DFBMC
Staff Resource: Gary Shanaberger, Town Manager
 

Action(s):

Approve this item on the 7/12/22 Consent Agenda.

Explanation:

At their June 28th work session, there was a unanimous consent of Town Council to approve the
resolution for the purchase of utilities from the Campbell County Utilities and Service Authority
(CCUSA) for the town-owned property known as the Dearing Ford Business and Manufacturing Center
(DFBMC), by placing the item on the July 12th regular Council Meeting Consent Agenda.

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. Resolution 6.28.22 - CCUSA Utilities

152

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1462005/Resolution_6.28.22_-_CCUSA_Utilities.pdf


15
3



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 8.A
NEW BUSINESS
Title: Special Events Permit Request - T & C Promotions - Uncle Billy's Reunion
Staff Resource: Matt Perkins, Assistant Town Manager
 

Action(s):

For Town Council discussion.  Should Council approve Permit, staff requests that it be contingent on
approval of T&C Promotions satisfactorily replying to questions in the application that can not yet be
answered at this stage of planning.  Additionally, if Town funds will be approved, Staff would like a
full and complete understanding of accounting practices (checks and balances) of the organization
before any funds are distributed. 

Explanation:

T&C Promotions has expressed and interest in revitalizing Uncle Billy's Day in the Town of Altavista. 
They have submitted a Special Event Permit for use of English Park and the Booker Building for June
2nd and 3rd, 2023.

Background:

The Special Event Permit submitted by T&C Promotions is present as an attachment.  They desire to
organize a two-day festival, essentially revitalizing Uncle Billy's Day, to include entertainment (music,
carnival rides and games), food and arts/craft vendors, alcohol beverage vendors, and a fireworks
display.  The event is "rain or shine". John Tucker will also be assisting in the event
planning/organization efforts with T&C Promotions.

Funding Source(s):

T&C Promotions has requested $20,000 in Town funding for the event.

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. Application Uncle Billy's Reunion 2023
Attachment 2. T and C Promotions Uncle Billy's Budget 2023

154

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1457779/Application_Uncle_Billys_Reunion_2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1457780/T_and_C_Promotions_Uncle_Billys_Budget_2023.pdf


155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 8.B
NEW BUSINESS
Title: Urban Archery Season/Bow Hunting on Town Owned Land
Staff Resource: Matt Perkins, Assistant Town Manager
 

Action(s):

Approval of Town council for staff to proceed with annual process of receiving applications for bow
hunters on certain Town owned property.

Explanation:

Each year staff seeks direction from Town Council in regard to the process by which we allow
individuals to bow hunt on Town owned property during the Urban Archery season.

Background:

The Urban Archery season gives hunters one month (September 1 – October 1, 2022 before and three
months after (January 2 – March 27, 2023) regular deer season in which only antlerless deer can be
taken. Bow hunting in town is also permitted during the general deer season (October 2 – January 1) in
which bucks (male deer) can also be harvested per the regulations. Urban archery is governed by
General Urban Archery Regulations, but localities can also adopt their own local restrictions. These two
items are attached. 

Funding Source(s):

N/A

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Urban Archery Policy.pdf

165

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1457854/Urban_Archery_Policy.pdf


Revised: July 2020 

 

 

Town of Altavista Urban Archery Policy 

 

Purpose:  The Town of Altavista Town Council has elected to participate in Virginia’s Urban Archery 

Program for the purpose of deer management.  To this end this policy is designed to meet the goal of 

reducing the deer population within the Town of Altavista. 

 

Town Owned Property:  Below and the Town Owned Properties that permits will be issued for during 

the upcoming Urban Archery Season, with the maximum number of hunters that can be on each 

property at one time: 

 Franklin Avenue at 10th Street (Tax Map: 83A-17-53; 5.18 acre tract) two (2) hunters. 

 

 11th Street, below 312 11th Street at dead end (Tax Map:  83A- 53-12; 6.31 acre tract) (one (1) 

hunter unless hunting together as a par, then two (2) hunters. 

 

 Waste Water Treatment Plant (adjacent parcel, past fence) (Tax Map: 84A- A- 19&20; 10.4 acre 

tract) three (3) hunters. 

PLEASE NOTE THAT GREENHILL CEMETERY AND THE ADJACENT TOWN OWNED PROPETY IS NOT 

AVAIABLE FOR HUNTING. 

Town Owned Property Hunting Policies & Rules of Conduct 

1. Each hunter will be assigned a random number, which will be included on your permit.  Hunters 

must “check out” a location at the time he/she plans to hunt by placing their numbered washer 

on the corresponding peg board location.  The board is located on the rear wall of Police 

Department at Town Hall.  The washer must not be placed early (the day prior to hunting or in 

the morning prior to an afternoon hunt) and must be removed each day after hunting is 

completed.  If all slots are filled at a location, another hunting location may be selected, but no 

more than the specified number of hunters are permitted in an area at one time. 
 

2. Hunters must carry their valid Town of Altavista archery permit at all times when hunting.  The 

archery parking permit must be displayed on the dash of your vehicle when parking and hunting 

on town-owned property. 
 

3. Only commercial manufactured hang-on, ladder stands, and sticks are permitted.  Leaving a 

stand in place is done at the “risk of the owner” and the Town of Altavista will assume no 

responsibility.  Stands left in place do not entitle a hunter to hunt that property automatically 

and may be used by other hunters.   The rule is “first come, first served”.  No permanent stands 

may be constructed. 
 

166



Revised: July 2020 

 

 

 

 

4. Maps will be provided for each location but it is the hunter’s responsibility to scout these areas 

and know the property boundaries. 
 

5. For Town-owned properties there is an “Earn a Buck” requirement.  A doe must be harvested, 

on one of the town owned properties, prior to harvesting a buck on a town owned property and 

the same pattern shall follow for additional bucks.  (i.e.:  doe, buck, doe, buck…) 
 

6. Hunters must complete and return, with 24 hours, the provided “check card” for all deer 

harvested on town owned properties.  The cards are to be placed in the “Drop Box” in the Town 

Hall parking lot or may be dropped off at Town Hall during normal business hours.  (NOTE: This 

process assists the Town with tracking the harvesting of deer on town owned property and 

assists with evaluation of continuation of the program.) Failure to comply may result in 

revocation of the current permit and ability to apply for future permits.  All harvested deer must 

still be checked in with the DGIF. 
 

7. Hunters must make every reasonable and legal effort to retrieve an injured animal. 
 

8. The use of 4-wheelers or ATVs on Town property is PROHIBITED. 
 

9. Hunting is NOT PERMITTED on Sundays on town owned property. 
 

10. Alcoholic beverages and smoking are STRICTLY PROHIBITED. 
 

11. NO rifles, shotguns or pistols may be used or carried afield on Town owned properties. 
 

12. All general DGIF and Altavista Urban Archery policies are applicable. 
 

13. Permits are valid only for a single hunting season in which they are issued and are Non-

Transferable. 

Failure to abide by the above policies and rules of conduct or conducting oneself in an unsafe or unruly 

manner will result in expulsion from the hunting site and forfeiture of future hunting privileges on town 

owned property. 

Please visit the DGIF Website for General Information (for all Localities) at:   

https://www.dgif.virginia.gov/hunting/urban-archery-season/ 

  

167

https://www.dgif.virginia.gov/hunting/urban-archery-season/


Revised: July 2020 

 

 

 

General Information (for all urban archery localities) 

 Earn A Buck rules are in effect in all towns and cities in Virginia (except 
Chesapeake, Suffolk, and Virginia Beach). Antlerless deer killed during 
urban archery season count toward Earn A Buck. 

 In addition to the Urban Archery Deer Season, archery deer hunting is 
also allowed during the Early Archery Deer Season, the Firearms Deer 
Season, and the Late Archery Deer Season (where applicable). In other 
words, from the first Saturday in October through the first Saturday in 
January. See “Seasons and Bag Limits”. 

 An archery license is required to hunt with archery tackle during the 
Urban Archery Deer Seasons, the Early Archery Deer Season, or the Late 
Archery Deer Season. See “License Requirements“. 

 Crossbows are defined by law as a type of bow and are therefore legal 
during all archery deer seasons. 

 All other normal deer regulations, including bag limits and 
tagging/checking requirements, apply during the Urban Archery Deer 
Seasons, including Earn-A-Buck and antler point restrictions, where 
applicable. See “Seasons and Bag Limits”. 

 The season bag limit for deer cannot be exceeded unless bonus deer 
permits are purchased. See “Bonus Deer Permits“. 

 Deer must be checked by calling 1-866-GOT-GAME, online, or at a big 
game check station. 

 Only antlerless deer may be taken during the Urban Archery Deer 
Seasons (see dates above). Antlerless deer include does, button bucks, 
and bucks that have shed their antlers. 

 Antlerless deer may also be taken on any day during the Early Archery 
Deer Season and the Late Archery Deer Season. 

 Antlerless deer may also be taken on any day during the Firearms Deer 
Season except in the City of Chesapeake, Chesterfield County, and 
Suffolk (east of the Dismal Swamp line), where antlerless deer can be 
taken only on the prescribed firearms deer season either-sex hunting 
days. 

 Antlered deer (bucks with antlers visible above the hairline) may not be 
taken during the Urban Archery Season but may be taken on any day 
during the Early Archery Deer Season, the Late Archery Deer Season, and 
during the Firearms Deer Season (i.e., during the “normal” deer seasons, 
from October through early January). 

 Deer hunting is permitted on Sundays in Virginia under the following 
circumstances (Code of Virginia §29.1-521): 

168

https://dwr.virginia.gov/hunting/regulations/general/#eab
https://dwr.virginia.gov/hunting/regulations/deer/
https://dwr.virginia.gov/hunting/regulations/licenses/
https://dwr.virginia.gov/hunting/regulations/deer/
https://dwr.virginia.gov/hunting/regulations/deer/#bonus
https://gooutdoorsvirginia.com/
https://dwr.virginia.gov/hunting/check-stations/
https://dwr.virginia.gov/hunting/check-stations/
https://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title29.1/chapter5/section29.1-521/


Revised: July 2020 

 

o During designated deer seasons. 
o On private property with written permission from the landowner. 

The written permission should state that Sunday hunting privileges 
are included. 

o Sunday deer hunting is not allowed on public property. 
o It is illegal to hunt within 200 yards of a house of worship or other 

building physically associated with a house of worship on Sunday. 

 Lists of properties available for hunting are not maintained by the 
Virginia Department of Game of Inland Fisheries or local governments. To 
find available properties, visit with or contact local landowners, deer 
hunters, archery clubs, check stations, the agency’s HunterFinder website, 
or the Outdoor Access website. Hunters in Fairfax County may wish to 
contact Suburban Whitetail Management of Northern Virginia, Inc. or visit 
the Fairfax County Archery Program web page. 

 Hunters must obtain permission from the landowner and must also 
obtain permission to pursue or retrieve deer from neighboring 
landowners. Due to the small size of parcels and proximity of residences, 
the hunter or the owner of the hunted property is encouraged to notify 
adjacent property owners or tenants in advance. 

 Hunters must abide by all applicable sections of the Virginia State Code, 
Virginia Hunting Regulations, and local ordinances. See local restrictions 
in the next section below. 

 

169

https://vbarchers.com/vba-affiliates/affiliates-list
https://dwr.virginia.gov/h-finder/
https://outdooraccess.com/#/
http://www.deerdamage.org/
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/wildlife/archery-program


LOCAL URBAN ARCHERY RESTRICTIONS 

Altavista 

 Except for target shooting, discharge of archery equipment is not 

permitted within one hundred (100) feet of any dwelling except with 

written consent of the owner of said structure. 

 

 No hunting on private property without written permission from the 

landowner which must be carried on the person at all times when hunting. 

 

 No person shall discharge a bow from, over or across any street, sidewalk, 

alley, roadway, or public land or public place within Town limits or 

toward any building or dwelling in such a manner that an arrow may 

strike it. 

 

 Except for target shooting, archery equipment can only be discharged 

from elevated stands unless written permission to hunt from the ground is 

given by the property owner. 

 

 Hunters must register and sign a release at Town Hall, with the Town 

Manager or designee, to hunt on Town-owned property. 

 

170



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 8.C
NEW BUSINESS
Title: ARS Grant Program Design
Staff Resource: Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director
 

Action(s):

Receive the update from staff.

Explanation:

Staff is providing Council with a copy of the Town's approved program design for ARS.

Background:

DHCD has approved the program design submitted by staff and we are ready to proceed with the grant
agreement. Before the contract can be executed, several certifications need to be approved by Council. 

Funding Source(s):

DHCD ARS Grant

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. ARS Program (002)

171

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460673/ARS_Program__002_.pdf


Town of Altavista Program Design – Acquire, Renovate, Sell Program 

 

Program Purpose and Objective: 

The mission of the Town of Altavista and its partners is to provide quality home ownership 

opportunities to people living and working in the town by building new homes and renovating 

older homes. 

Oversight and Staffing: 

Grant Administrator – Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director 

• Oversee the design of the project, as well as plan out its implementation. 

• Serves as the primary point of contact for the development team to include surveyors, 

contractors, tradesmen, realtors, bankers, and interested citizens. 

• Oversee the work of the Renovation Specialist. 

• Conduct an initial and final DHCD HQS inspection, independently of the Renovation 

Specialist. 

• Oversee the procurement process for purchased services. 

• Oversee the Housing Counselor’s completion of the intake process 

• Review and approve all pay request and change orders. 

• Oversee grant reporting to DHCD and Town Council. 

• Receive all complaints, investigates and makes recommendations to solve them; and  

• Oversee the acquisition, renovation, and loan closing process. 

Housing Counselor 

The Town intends to refer potential home buyers to Virginia Housing or United States Department 

of Agriculture (USDA) who will: 

• Facilitate pre-homebuyer education classes that cover personal finance, credit, lender, real 

estate agent, home inspection, loan closing, and home maintenance 

• Complete the intake process for prospective home buyers. 

• Explain the loan process and paperwork to clients; and 

• Work with Grant Administrator and Renovation Specialist to keep client informed throughout 

the process. 

Renovation Specialist - TBD 

The town desires to partner with Virginia Technical Institute (VTI) to locate a renovation 

specialist. If not, the town will seek to identify a partner through eVA or by issuing a request for 

proposals/qualifications. 

• Complete the initial write up during acquisition phase. 

• Complete scope of work. 

• Complete DHCD HQS (Initial and final) 

172



• In conjunction with the Grant Administrator oversee the bidding and selection process, quality 

of renovation work; weekly inspections, change orders and timely completion of work.  

• Coordinate and attend meetings in conjunction with the project. 

• Ensure journeymen and apprentices receive adequate supervision and training. 

• Ensures compliance with risk assessor services, use of lead safe work practices, and clearance 

testing; and 

• Make recommendations on other grant programs that can be used to reduce project cost and/or 

improve the healthiness of the home. 

 

Financial Manager – Tobie C. Shelton, Finance Director/Treasurer, Town of Altavista  

 

The grant will go through the Town’s established financial protocols. 

• Assist the Program Manager in ensuring town procurement policies are followed. 

• Assist with administering program budget including the tracking of revenue and expenditures. 

 

Property Eligibility 

• The town’s first project will be new construction on a residentially zoned town-owned lot. 

• The town will also seek to acquire houses that are vacant, blighted, and subject to code 

enforcement action or are already under a Notice of Violation. 

• In conjunction with local realtors the town will seek advice on property that is listed for sale 

in MLS. 

• The town will check online and in the newspaper for houses that are available FSBO, tax sales, 

auctions, and estate sales. 

Applicant Eligibility 

Eligibility Requirements and Restrictions 

• This program is limited to first time home buyers. 

• The property must be owner-occupied and not used as rental housing. 

• Applicants must meet the Virginia income eligibility criteria, which is 80% or less of Area 

Media Income (AMI). 

• The program has no credit score requirements, but applicants are expected to demonstrate a 

willingness and ability to handle and manage debt. 

• Preference will be given to applicants that complete a homebuyer’s education class to include 

credit counseling. 

• Applicants must be a U.S. Citizen, U.S. non-citizen national or Qualified Alien 

• Applicants may not be in the arrears to the Town of Altavista or Campbell County; if a 

delinquency is shown, prospective purchaser must attach a receipt to show ad valorem taxes 

are current prior to closing. 

 

 

 

173



Program Design 

The town will issue a press release to introduce the program and explain the criteria. Interested 

parties will be asked to contact the town to learn more about the program as well as first-time home 

buyer programs through Virginia Housing and USDA. 

Intake: 

• The town will create an online and paper application for interested parties to express interest 

in the program and learn more about the loan programs of USDA and Virginia Housing. 

• Applications will be reviewed by the program design team for completeness. 

• Applicants will be referred to an approved local lender to be reviewed for possible eligibility. 

Applicant Income and Asset Limits: 

• ARS funds may be used only to directly benefit income eligible (80% Area Median income- 

AMI or less) households based on Virginia Housing income charts; *DHCD/Virginia Housing 

acknowledge that some Virginia Housing loans offer programs above 80% AMI- this is 

acceptable under ARS.  

• All income and asset information must be verified by third- party documentation.  Gross 

income of the household from the previous year must be taken into consideration for 

qualification purposes.   

• Ten percent (10%) of liquid assets or actual interest earned must also be counted as income 

and added to the gross income of a household.   

 

LMI Ratio 

• ARS will adhere to a 10/50 rule on resale transactions.  A minimum of ten percent (10%) of 

homebuyers will be at or below fifty percent (50%) AMI.  

 

Renovation Standards  

 

The town will use a combination of funding sources including leveraging its own properties, 

accounts, and assets. 

• Up to $40,500 of funds from DHCD may be used to renovate acquired single family homes. 

All properties receiving ARS assistance must be renovated to DHCD Housing Quality 

Standards (HQS).  

• Improvements must relate to DHCD HQS and be in keeping with the character of the existing 

neighborhood. 

• Green building techniques are encouraged for items needing renovation/repair.  

• The town will seek to incorporate universal design during improvements to allow owners to 

age in place or meet any future accessible needs. 

• All properties must be inspected for termite and other structural infestation by a licensed 

exterminator (if infestation is discovered, treatment must be provided). 

174



• All chimneys must be inspected thoroughly for structural damage, including loose masonry 

units and open mortar joints, and for blockage of flue.  All damaged chimneys must be repaired.  

Chimneys with substantial blockage must be cleaned or capped. 

• All debris, abandoned vehicles, and derelict outbuildings must be removed from property. 

• Houses built prior to 1978 will be presumed to contain lead-based paint (LBP).  All repairs 

will be designed to eliminate these hazards using interim controls for any defective paint 

surface, and any breached friction, impact, or chewable surface showing excessive dust and/or 

deterioration e.g., windowsill, window trough, flooring, or stair treads.  All renovation 

involving the elimination of LBP hazards shall receive a passing Clearance Examination 

documented by a licensed Risk Assessor. 

• The town will seek to use US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to make 

improvements under its Lead-Based Paint & Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration and 

Healthy Homes Grant Programs. 

• The town will seek to reduce renovation cost by seeking to utilize additional grant funds 

available under DHCD’s Housing Innovations in Energy Efficiency (HIEE) Program. 

 

Contracting Procedures 

 

The town will create a contractors’ pool via the solicitation of Requests for Qualifications in 

accordance with the Virginia Public Procurement Act. 

 

• The town will seek sealed proposals from firms who wish to be considered to provide on-call 

professional contractual services for the construction and renovation of homes throughout the 

Town. These services shall be provided on an “as needed” basis. The Consultant may choose 

to propose on all or any combination of the Scope of Services in which the Consultant has an 

interest. The Town may award multiple contracts from its RFQ.  

• The town intends to contract with companies for an initial one-year period with option to 

extend annually for up to four additional years. Pursuant to the requirements of the Virginia 

Public Procurement Act, fees paid for professional services under such contract shall not 

exceed $500,000. Individual work orders will not exceed $100,000 per project without 

obtaining services through competitive negotiations. 

• The town will also partner with Virginia Technical Institute (VTI) to offer a hands-on training 

in a variety of fields including electrical, plumbing, heating and air, welding, pipefitting, 

carpentry, masonry, and project management with a stipend for the Construction Supervisor. 

The town may also partner with the Altavista Economic Development Authority (AEDA) to 

fund a full-time position to oversee the training program. 

 

Construction Documents 

The project team will prepare the documents needed for construction. The work will include the 

development of the documents used for bidding and building the project and will include the 

following: 

1. Cover sheet 

2. Life Safety Plan (building code information) 

3. General Architectural Information, partition, and finish schedules 

175



4. Demolition and New Work Floor Plans on the lower level 

5. Demolition and New Work Floor Plans on the upper level 

6. Roof Plan and Details 

7. Exterior elevations of the building 

8. Interior elevations 

9. Door and window schedule, elevations, and details 

 

Proposal Selection 

 

Proposals will be reviewed by Town staff and evaluated to determine which proposals best meet 

the criteria of the RFQ. Evaluation of the proposals by Town staff is expected to be completed 

within 21 days of receiving the proposals. The final selection will be based on completeness, 

experience with agencies, technical merit, and time to perform. It is the Town’s intention to select 

a minimum of three (3) firms that have sufficient expertise to handle the projects the Town 

undertakes, thereby minimizing the involvement of other firms. However, the Town reserves the 

right to select and contract with fewer than three firms for the specified serves, in whole or in part. 

 

Evaluation Criteria 

 

The Town’s selection committee will evaluate proposals based on the following factors: 

 

1. General background of the firm, available resources, subcontractors, and range of services 

including rates for standardized classes of service on an hourly basis. 
2. Experience of the firm with similar “as needed” general engineering contracts. Include 

references. 

3. Experience of the firm with similar types of projects, particularly for Virginia 

municipalities of similar size. Include references. 

4. Qualifications of the proposed Project Manager(s) and other key personnel that would most 

likely be assigned. 

5. Familiarity with Federal and State grant/loan programs. 
6. Proximity to the Town of Altavista. 

7. Existing knowledge of the Town of Altavista.  

8. Quality of presentation. 

 

Bidding and Construction Process 

  
The project team will assist in bidding the project to the construction community and awarding it 
to the lowest, responsive, and responsible bidder. Because time is of the essence with this program, 
we will keep the bidding timeframe as short as possible while ensuring the projects receive 
competent and competitive bids. We will coordinate placing the advertisement for the project in 
venues appropriate to gain interest in the project. 
 

Construction 

 

For all projects, the town will contact the design team, which will consist of surveyors, 

draftsman/architects, engineers, and similar professionals to survey the property and prepare 

housing plans to include architectural, civil, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing disciplines. 

 

176



Bidding and Negotiations:  

1. The project team will coordinate the issuance of the construction documents. 

2. The project team will host a contractor pre-bid meeting. 

3. The team will respond to contractor questions. 

4. An addendum will be issued if required. 

5. The project team will attend bid opening and tabulate the bids. 

6. The project team will select a firm. 

 

Time of Completion 

A successful bidder shall begin the work on receipt of the Notice to Proceed and shall complete 

the work within  the stipulated  number  of  calendar days  stated  by  the General Contractor on 

the bid form. 

 

Bidder’s Qualifications 

Bidders must be properly licensed under the laws governing their respective trades and be able to 

obtain insurance and bonds required for the work. A Performance Bond, separate Labor and 

Material Payment Bond, and Insurance in a form acceptable to the town will be required of the 

successful bidder. 

 

Contracts and Agreements 

1. The town and selected contractor shall enter into a contract for each project awarded. 

2. A project schedule shall be provided to the town prior to work commencing. 

3. Contractor will be responsible for obtaining zoning, building, mechanical, electrical, and 

plumbing permits. Fees due to the town and Campbell County will be waived. 

4. Permits will be posted on site along with an approved set of construction plans. 

5. Biweekly meetings will be held with the town to advise on the status of the project. 

6. Contractor will be responsible for obtaining inspections and Certificate of Occupancy from 

Campbell County. 

7. An “As Built” survey will be required at the end of the project. 

8. Payment shall be made only after the program team has inspected the home. 

 

Financial Assistance 

Down Payment Assistance Grants (DPA) are available should the prospective homeowner obtain 

a Virginia Housing (VH) first trust mortgage. 

 

 

177



Conflict of Interest 

No person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the 

Town of Altavista, or any designated public agencies who exercises or has exercised any functions 

or responsibilities with respect to Acquire, Renovate, Sell activities or who is in a position to 

participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, 

may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract, 

subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or in any of its proceeds, either for themselves or 

those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure and for one year thereafter. 

 

Complaint and Appeals Procedures 

1. The Grant Administrator will attempt informal resolution. If informal resolution is not possible, the 

complaint must be put in writing and forwarded to the Project Management Team. If the 

complainant requires assistance in putting his or her complaint in writing, the Grant Administrator 

must make assistance available.  The same is true for any appeals. 

 

2. The Grant Administrator is required to investigate the complaint and respond to it, in writing, in a 

timely manner.  The response must include an explanation of the reason(s) for the decision reached, 

information on how the decision can be appealed, and how many days from receipt of notice the 

complainant has to appeal the decision. 

 

3. Appeals of the Grant Administrator’s decision should be addressed, in writing, to the Management 

Team.   

 

4. Appeals of that the Management Team’s decision should be appealed, in writing, to the Town 

Manager.  

 

5. Appeals of the Town Manager’s decision should be addressed, in writing, to Town Council.   

 

6. All written appeals must be addressed within 15 days of receipt and resolved within 30 days of the 

appeal and retained for review.  All appeals are to be responded to in writing.  The response must 

include an explanation of the reason(s) for the decision reached, information on the next step in the 

appeals process and how many days from receipt of notice the complainant has to appeal any 

decision.  

 

7. Final appeals may be addressed, in writing, to DHCD.  The appeal should include a copy of all 

correspondence that has taken place to this point.  The appeal should identify the problem and the 

desired solution.  DHCD will review the complaint and respond, in writing, in a timely manner.  All 

involved parties will be copied. 

 

 

178



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 8.D
NEW BUSINESS
Title: ARS Fair Housing Certification
Staff Resource: Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director
 

Action(s):

Adopt the Resolution

Explanation:

The Town must adopt a Fair Housing Certification as a condition of participation in the ARS (Acquire,
Renovate, Sell) program.  

Background:

For each program year in which the ARS Agreement is active, the Provider must take affirmative steps
to further Fair Housing.  To meet this requirement, the Provider must certify that it will undertake at
least one fair housing activity in each program year. 

 

The Fair Housing Certification is to be taken very seriously.  The solicitation of potential home buyers,
the housing counseling component, the sale of homes, and all activities relating to the ARS Program
must all be done in conformance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1968.

Funding Source(s):

DHCD ARS Grant

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. Fair Housing Certification

179

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460529/Fair_Housing_Certification.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

Fair Housing Certification 

Compliance with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 

 

Whereas, the Town of Altavista has been offered and intends to accept ARS Funds 

administered through the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development 

AND Funded through the Virginia Housing Development Authority authorized under their 

REACH program, as amended, and 

Whereas, recipients of funding for this program are required to take action to 

affirmatively further fair housing; 

Therefore, the Town of Altavista agrees to take at least one action to affirmatively 

further fair housing each year, during the life of its program funded through ARS.  The 

action taken will be selected from a list on page 2 provided by the Virginia Department of 

Housing and Community Development. 

 

 

Adopted July 12, 2022. 

 

_________________________________ 

Mike Mattox, Mayor 

 

_________________________________ 

Date

180



Examples of acceptable Fair Housing Activities include: 

 

 

• Adopt a resolution endorsing the concept of fair housing, including the specific 
rights included in the law, and advertise its wording in a display advertisement in 
a local newspaper; 

• Attendance by a member of the Provider’s governing body or Chief 
Administrative Official and a second appropriate representative (realtor, banker, 
etc.) at a fair housing workshop approved by DHCD; 

• Provide all program beneficiaries with a copy of DHCD’s fair housing brochures; 

• Distribute copies of the fair housing brochures at local public events; 

• Enlist the participation of local realtors, lenders and homebuilders in an 
agreement, and promotion of affirmative marketing, open housing and review of 
underwriting /credit criteria, etc.  Publish such agreements in a local paper; 

• Conduct public educational programs for local housing consumers, providers, 
and/or financial institutions, regarding fair housing issues; 

• Develop a public information program using local newspapers, radio stations, 
bulletin board, churches, utility bill mailings, or local government TV channels to 
ensure that all segments of the community are aware of fair housing 
requirements, especially realtors, landlords, financial institutions, and the minority 
community;  

• Sponsor a fair housing poster contest at local schools in conjunction with an 
informational session; 

• Develop a fair housing assistance program to make housing opportunities 
available in non-minority areas, monitor compliance and submit discrimination 
complaints to the State or Federal government; 

• Conduct a formal Assessment of Impediments (AI) study of local zoning, real 
estate and/or financing practices which affect housing choices of minorities and 
other protected classes; and 

• Survey the special housing problems of minorities and women, determining 
any effects of discrimination and developing a plan to assist them in 
overcoming these effects. 

 

 The fair housing activity selected by the Provider must be 
a different one each program year.  Furthermore, all fair 
housing activities must be properly documented so their 
completion can be verified during the compliance review.  

 If the Provider has more than one active DHCD project, 
only one fair housing activity is required but all project 
files must be documented. 

 

 

181



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 8.E
NEW BUSINESS
Title: ARS Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan Certification 
Staff Resource: Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director
 

Action(s):

Adopt the certification.

Explanation:

Under the ARS Grant Program, the Town must adopt an Anti-Displacement Certification.

Background:

Under the ARS Grant, all acquisitions must be voluntary; as no involuntary acquisitions will be
approved. Per DHCD, the Town shall seek marketed unoccupied properties for acquisitions such as
foreclosures, tax sales, estate sales, auctions, abandoned, and/or vacant homes.

Funding Source(s):

DHCD ARS Grant

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. Anti Displacement Certification

182

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460494/Anti_Displacement_Certification.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ARS - RESIDENTIAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN 

CERTIFICATION 

 

Should the Town of Altavista encounter an occupied structure and continue with acquisition; the 

following certification will be upheld. 

 

 The Town of Altavista will provide permanent relocation assistance to each LMI household displaced 

with leveraged funding sources. Up to Forty- Two (42) Months of Housing Assistance Payments shall 

be provided as outlined in Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 

amended, or the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as 

amended. DHCD written approval will be required in advance for any properties that will necessitate 

relocation assistance. 

 

The Town of Altavista FY23 project includes the following activities: 

 

1. The creation of a pool of contractors to use during the grant. 

2. Formation of a partnership with Virginia Technical Institute (VTI) to assist with lowering cost 

and providing hands-on training for their students. 

3. Construction one new single-family dwelling at 806 12th St. 

4. Actively seeking properties where new homes can be built, or existing homes renovated. 

 

 

 

 

Adopted this 12th day of July 2022. 

 

 

___________________________ 

         

Mike Mattox, Mayor 

 

183



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 8.F
NEW BUSINESS
Title: ARS Performance Pool Program Funds & Leveraged Funding Acknowledgement
Staff Resource: Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director
 

Action(s):

Approve the certification.

Explanation:

As an ARS Grantee, the town must complete a Performance Pool acknowledgement form.

Background:

As part of the application process staff had to demonstrate the town had open line(s) of credit or
allocated funds totaling at least $200,000.00 or the financial capacity to acquire at least two (2)
properties at any given time. To demonstrate the town had the means, DHCD was provided a copy of
the FY2021 budget and explained that we had a money market account that we hold reserve funds for
future projects of emergency needs.  
 
The town will need to iden)fy a funding source to cover the cost of the first project beyond the
$45,000 it receives from DHCD. Staff will provide a proposal to Council at a later date. We are
reques)ng to con)nue to use the general fund and money market to demonstrate our
creditworthiness.
 

All ARS deliverable costs are performance-based i.e., costs are paid only a2er the a3ainment of pre-
determined thresholds. All Program Delivery fees will be limited to a maximum of $2,000.00. ARS will
not provide administra)ve fees or developer fees. The deliverable schedule is as follows: Acquisi)on
Deliverable $500, Rehab Deliverable $1,000 and Resale Deliverable $500.  

Funding Source(s):

DHCD ARS Grant and Town Funds TBD

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. Performance Pool Program Funds

184

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460658/Performance_Pool_Program_Funds_.pdf


 

 

 

ARS- PERFORMANCE POOL PROGRAM FUNDS & LEVERAGED 

FUNDING ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Whereas, the Town of Altavista has been offered and intends to accept ARS Funds administered 

through the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development AND Funded through 

the Virginia Housing Development Authority authorized under their REACH program, as 

amended, and 

The Town of Altavista acknowledges ARS funds are set up in a Performance Pool and released 

to Providers on a first come first service basis.  Budgets will be allocated on a per property 

basis.  

The Town of Altavista further acknowledges properties must be approved by DHCD in advance 

to draw ARS funds via a funding reservation form in CAMS.  In addition to ARS renovation 

draws the Provider can receive deliverable costs. All ARS deliverable costs are performance-

based i.e., costs are paid only after the attainment of pre-determined thresholds. All Program 

Delivery fees will be limited to a maximum of $2,000.00.  

 

LEVERAGED FUNDING SOURCES 

Leveraged Source Funding Amount Committed/ 
Requested 

Comments- Type of 
Assistance 

General Fund and/ 
or Reserves 

$200,000.00 Requested The Town has multiple 
funding sources that it 
can use to complete the 
first home. The proceeds 
from the sale of the first 
home will be used to 
finance future projects 
and/or repay the Town’s 
cost of constructing the 
home. 

 

_________________________________ 

Mike Mattox, Mayor 

_________________________________ 

Date 

185



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 8.G
NEW BUSINESS
Title: ARS Program Income Plan
Staff Resource: Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director
 

Action(s):

Approve plan

Explanation:

As part of the ARS Grant, the town must adopt a plan for how proceeds from the sale of the home will
be used.

Background:

The Provider must develop a Program Income Plan for net proceeds from the sale of all ARS homes. 
The Providers can set aside ten percent of the net proceeds for administrative costs and the remaining
ninety percent will be dedicated to affordable housing efforts in your locality

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

ARS Program Pool.docx

186

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1464751/ARS_Program_Pool.pdf


ARS PROGRAM INCOME PLAN

The program income generated from the Acquire, Renovate, Sell (ARS) Program are separated 
into two distinct categories and will be treated independently of one another.

1. ARS repayment:  

The ARS funds repayment, after the sale of each home, will be treated as program income 
due and repayable to DHCD/VHDA.  These funds are net of deliverable fees paid to the 
Provider and Rehab Specialist fees.  Each home will have a tracking and completion report 
submitted by the Provider to determine the ARS repayment. These funds are due back to 
DHCD/VHDA within 30 days of the homebuyer’s loan closing on each property.

2. Net Proceeds from the Sale of Each ARS Property:

Program income under Part 2 will be derived from the sale of each ARS Property.   These 
program income funds will be generated in the Town of Altavista.

All program income generated through net proceeds will be held by the Provider for 
continuance of affordable housing opportunities in a manner that will directly benefit 
low-moderate income residents in the Town of Altavista service area.

Altavista’s Program Income Plan

 Ten percent (10%) of the net proceeds will be used towards the Town’s 
administrative costs.

 Ninety percent (90%) of the net proceeds will be used towards affordable housing 
opportunities.

 Town Council will determine the use of the program income based on the 
recommendation of the Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, and 
Community Development Director. Once the decision is made the Community 
Development Director will have primary oversight over the program to assure the 
plan is followed

 The Finance Director with the assistance of the Community Development 
Director will be responsible for providing financial reports to the management 
team and DHCD.

 If all the needs in the area have been met the town will seek to create a loan 
and/or grant pool for minor household repairs for LMI properties.

187



 Recognize this is a living document and will be updated throughout the program 
as the need arises. 

3. ADMINISTRATION: 

Program Income Part 1. 

The Town of Altavista will be responsible for receiving direct payments.  The funds 
will be deposited in a non interest-bearing escrow account and identified as revenue 
then immediately transmitted to DHCD.  Funds will be accounted for separately on the 
Altavista’s balance sheet as ARS Program Income Part 1.  Program income shall be 
returned to DHCD’s Financial Analyst.

Program Income Part 2. 

The Town of Altavista will implement the activities in accordance with the Program 
Design, and this Program Income Plan.   The funds will be deposited in a non- interest-
bearing escrow account and identified as revenue.  Funds will be accounted for 
separately on the Altavista’s balance sheet as ARS Program Income Part 2.  

I certify this is the approved plan for program income derived from the Acquire, 
Renovate, Sell Program. I further certify that the governing body fully intends to carry 
out this plan. 

I understand that the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development 
will review the records maintained for program income funds. I understand that failure 
to follow this plan can lead to termination of our ARS funding

_________________________________

Signature of Authorized Official

_________________________________

Date

188



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 9.A
UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Title: School Zone, Speed Monitoring Camera Systems - Update
Staff Resource: APD Chief Tommy Merricks
 

Action(s):

Receive update from APD Chief Tommy Merricks

Explanation:

Chief Merricks will give Town Council an update on the new speed monitoring camera systems.

Background:

For safety reasons, Town Council approved the use of speed cameras in both of the town's school zones
(Altavista Elementary and Altavista Combined School), to help reduce the number of vehicles speeding
through the school zones. The camera systems are active during the morning and afternoon hours that
the students are arriving and leaving school.

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

189



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 10.A
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Title: Departmental Reports - Finance
Staff Resource: Tobie Shelton, Director of Finance and Communication
 

Action(s):

Explanation:

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. Meals Tax Report
Attachment 2. Sales Tax Report
Attachment 3. Lodging Tax Report
Attachment 4. Cigarette Tax Report

190

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449380/11_Meals_Tax_FY2022_May_Update_for_Jul_Mtg.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449382/10_Local_Sales_Tax_Through_April_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449383/11_Lodging_Occupancy__Tax_FY2022_May_Report_Jul_Mtg.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1449381/12_Cigarette_Tax_FY2022_Jun_Report.pdf


   TOWN OF ALTAVISTA

MEAL TAX COLLECTIONS

Jul-20 $88,787.18 PREVIOUS

Aug-20 $85,975.65 YTD TOTAL (FY)

Sep-20 $86,501.21 FY2018 $936,848.19

Oct-20 $88,976.04 FY2019 $986,050.18

Nov-20 $80,071.01 FY2020 $971,639.35

Dec-20 $90,778.92 FY2021 $1,109,805.71

Jan-21 $86,017.01 MTD TOTAL (FY)

Feb-21 $83,318.92 FY2021 $1,005,873.51

Mar-21 $107,320.09 FY2022 $1,069,361.45

Apr-21 $105,170.66 +/- $63,487.94

May-21 $102,956.82

Jun-21 $103,932.20 Budgeted: $990,000

Jul-21 $102,323.58 +/- $79,361.45

Aug-21 $98,626.77 % of Budget 108.02%

Sep-21 $96,824.86

Oct-21 $98,658.96

Nov-21 $91,491.36

Dec-21 $99,746.00

Jan-22 $79,529.83

Feb-22 $89,114.95

Mar-22 $105,982.48

Apr-22 $102,861.09

May-22 $104,201.57

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

$70,000.00

$80,000.00

$90,000.00

$100,000.00

$110,000.00

$120,000.00

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
p

r-
2

1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

Ju
l-

2
1

A
u

g-
2

1

Se
p

-2
1

O
ct

-2
1

N
o

v-
2

1

D
ec

-2
1

Ja
n

-2
2

Fe
b

-2
2

M
ar

-2
2

A
p

r-
2

2

M
ay

-2
2

Meals Tax Collections

191



Town of Altavista

Local Sales Tax

Jul-20 $17,032 YTD TOTAL (FY)

Aug-20 $15,648 FY2018 $171,886

Sep-20 $16,975 FY2019 $169,649

Oct-20 $17,144 FY2020 $170,672

Nov-20 $16,974 FY2021 $210,836

Dec-20 $19,443

Jan-21 $15,691 MTD TOTAL (FY)

Feb-21 $15,004 FY2020 $171,828

Mar-21 $19,642 FY2021 $190,381

Apr-21 $18,276 +/- $18,553

May-21 $19,461

Jun-21 $19,547 Budgeted: $180,000

Jul-21 $18,437 +/- -$10,381

Aug-21 $17,735 % of Budget 95.46%

Sep-21 $19,246

Oct-21 $18,249

Nov-21 $18,373

Dec-21 $23,498

Jan-22 $17,336

Feb-22 $16,524

Mar-22 $21,319

Apr-22 $19,664

NOTE:  The Aug & Sept. 2019 figures represent a County refund claim.
$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

$14,000.00

$16,000.00

$18,000.00

$20,000.00

$22,000.00

$24,000.00

$26,000.00

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
p

r-
2

1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

Ju
l-

2
1

A
u

g-
2

1

Se
p

-2
1

O
ct

-2
1

N
o

v-
2

1

D
ec

-2
1

Ja
n

-2
2

Fe
b

-2
2

M
ar

-2
2

A
p

r-
2

2

Local Sales Tax (Monthly FY21 & FY22)

192



Jul-20 $11,145

Aug-20 $12,167 FISCAL YEAR

Sep-20 $7,314 TOTAL

Oct-20 $5,513 FY2021 $117,290

Nov-20 $14,408

Dec-20 $4,763 MTD TOTAL (FY)

Jan-21 $7,368 FY2021 $103,368

Feb-21 $9,745 FY2022 $115,050

Mar-21 $9,543 +/- $11,682

Apr-21 $9,575

May-21 $11,827 Budgeted: $80,000

Jun-21 $13,922 +/- $35,050

Jul-21 $11,551 %/Budget: 143.81%

Aug-21 $13,399

Sep-21 $12,518

Oct-21 $12,686

Nov-21 $7,538

Dec-21 $5,722

Jan-22 $6,248

Feb-22 $7,000

Mar-22 $13,294

Apr-22 $11,765

May-22 $13,329

Town of Altavista

Lodging (Occupancy) Tax

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

$14,000.00

$16,000.00

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
p

r-
2

1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

Ju
l-

2
1

A
u

g-
2

1

Se
p

-2
1

O
ct

-2
1

N
o

v-
2

1

D
ec

-2
1

Ja
n

-2
2

Fe
b

-2
2

M
ar

-2
2

A
p

r-
2

2

M
ay

-2
2

Lodging (Occupancy) Tax Revenue (monthly FY21 & FY22)

193



Jul-20 $7,556

Aug-20 $7,500

Sep-20 $11,250 FY2018 $144,668

Oct-20 $11,306 FY2019 $140,288

Nov-20 $11,250 FY2020 $124,684

Dec-20 $11,250 FY2021 $101,612

Jan-21 $125

Feb-21 $3,750 MTD TOTAL (FY)

Mar-21 $15,000 FY2021 $101,612

Apr-21 $7,500 FY2022 $93,885

May-21 $7,500 +/- -$7,727

Jun-21 $7,625

Jul-21 $7,500 Budgeted: $130,000

Aug-21 $15,000 +/- -$36,115

Sep-21 $7,650 %/Budget: 72.22%

Oct-21 $7,500

Nov-21 $11,235

Dec-21 $7,500

Jan-22 $0

Feb-22 $0

Mar-22 $15,000

Apr-22 $7,500

May-22 $7,500

Jun-22 $7,500

Town of Altavista

Local Cigarette Tax

FISCAL YEAR 

TOTAL

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

$14,000.00

$16,000.00

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
p

r-
2

1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

Ju
l-

2
1

A
u

g-
2

1

Se
p

-2
1

O
ct

-2
1

N
o

v-
2

1

D
ec

-2
1

Ja
n

-2
2

Fe
b

-2
2

M
ar

-2
2

A
p

r-
2

2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
n

-2
2

Cigarette Stamp Revenue (monthly FY21 & FY22)

194



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 10.B
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Title: Utility Projects Update
Staff Resource: Tom Fore, Public Services Director
 

Action(s):

Explanation:

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. 1-July-2022 Status Report
Attachment 2. 1-July 22 Fraizer Drainage
Attachment 3. 1 July 2022 Springs & PS SCADA
Attachment 4. 1-July-22 Clarion Road Water Line Project
Attachment 5. 1-July-2022 Aeration Study Status Report
Attachment 6. 1-July-2022 WWTP Electrical Upgrade Status Report
Attachment 7. 1-July-2022 WTP Filter Upgrade Status Report
Attachment 8. 5 July-2022 Melinda HPZ status Report
Attachment 9. June 2022 Monthly Report for Council Members 1
Attachment 10. June 2022 Monthly Report for Council Members 2
Attachment 11. AMI Water Metering Status Update 7-7-22
Attachment 12. Lynch Creek Sewer Status Update 7-7-22

195

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452639/1-July-2022_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452640/1-July_22_Fraizer_Drainage.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452641/1_July_2022_Springs___PS_SCADA.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452642/1-July-22_Clarion_Road_Water_Line_Project.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452643/1-July-2022_Aeration_Study_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452644/1-July-2022_WWTP_ElectricalUpgrade_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1452645/1-July-2022_WTP_Filter_Upgrade_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1453451/5_July-2022_Melinda_HPZ_status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458188/June_2022_Monthly_Report__for_Council_Members_1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458189/June_2022_Monthly_Report__for_Council_Members_2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458921/AMI_Water_Metering_Status_Update_7-7-22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1458923/Lynch_Creek_Sewer_Status_Update_7-7-22.pdf


Town of Altavista Projects 

Status Report - Peed & Bortz, LLC 

1 July 2022 

Project Name: VDEM Generator Installations 

Project Manager:  Scott Bortz, PE 

Sub-Consultant Grant Beasley, Master Engineers, ECS (Geotech) 

P&B Job Number 20-51 

 

 

Recent Activities: Punchlist walkthrough at the Staunton River station on 23 June sent to 
the Contractor on 24 June to complete minor issues. Generators have 
been started up. 

Anticipated work over the 
next two weeks: 

Contractor/Town will resolve the issue of a high leg electrical 
connection error at McMinnis Spring site.  Issue substantial and final 
completion at the resolution of this electrical issue.  

Upcoming Tasks:  

Outstanding Issues:  

-------------------------- 

Design Schedule: May (Rebid) 2021 Award Contract 
June 2021 Notice to Proceed 
November 2021 Substantial Completion

Schedule Constraints:  

Projected Completion:  

Approved Budget: $43,600  

Invoiced To Date: $41,820 

Balance to Complete: $1780 

-------------------------- 

 Town Input Required:  

Issues Town Should Be Aware Of:   

 

Construction Contract Price: $498,500 + ($1556)  (Change Orders) 

Current Paid:  $496,943 

Balance to Finish plus retainage:  $0 

 
 
  

196



Town of Altavista Projects 

Status Report - Peed & Bortz, LLC 

1 July 2022 

Project Name: Frazier and Lynch Mill Road Drainage issues  

Project Manager:  Scott Bortz, PE 

Sub-Consultant  

P&B Job Number 21-08 

-------------------------- 

Recent Activities: Sent draft of easement sketch to Town for review by property owner.  
Sent preliminary plans to Town staff and met w/ staff to review on 27 
April.  Town staff has requested additional repair work at the existing 
concrete ditch along Frazier Road and endwall work at west side of 
Edgewood Road.  Engineer will bid the ditch material as both Flexamat 
and installed rip rap.  Staff requested a mower cross over for the church 
to access the north east side of the ditch.   
 

Anticipated work over the 
next two weeks: 

Staff will review the mower status and provide guidance.  Provide 
revised schematic design after incorporation of existing utilities to avoid 
conflicts.  Town staff will advise when the easement plat has been 
agreed upon.  

Upcoming Tasks:  

Outstanding Issues: Easements 

-------------------------- 

Design Schedule:  

Schedule Constraints:  

Projected Completion:  

Approved Budget: Time and materials not to exceed $23,000 

Invoiced To Date: $3285 

Balance to Complete: $19,715 

-------------------------- 

 Town Input Required: Town staff will need to review the sizing of the ditch and 
easement across private land.  The ditch can be widened at the 
base and side slopes made steeper to reduce the width of the 
easement if so desired.

Issues Town Should Be Aware Of:     

 

Construction Contract Price: $0 

  

  

  

197



Town of Altavista Projects 

Status Report - Peed & Bortz, LLC 

1 July 2022 

Project Name: SCADA for Generator Sites 

Project Manager:  Russell Jackson, PE 

Sub-Consultant  

P&B Job Number 20-51 

 

 

Recent Activities: Town staff sent on the latest comments on 25 May. Complete plans and 
specifications and re-submitted to Town for review and acceptance.

Anticipated work over the 
next two weeks: 

Address any remaining comments.   

Upcoming Tasks: Prepare plan to bid the work. 

Outstanding Issues:  

-------------------------- 

Design Schedule:  

Schedule Constraints:  

Projected Completion: TBD 

Approved Budget: $9600 

Invoiced To Date: $2400 

Balance to Complete: $7200 

-------------------------- 

 Town Input Required:  

Issues Town Should Be Aware Of:     

 

Construction Contract Price: $0 

  

198



Town of Altavista Projects 

Status Report - Peed & Bortz, LLC 

1 July 2022 

 

Project Name: Clarion Road Abbott Water Extension 

Project Manager:  Scott Bortz, PE 

Sub-Consultant Armstrong Surveying, ECS 

P&B Job Number 18-59 

-------------------------- 

Recent Activities: Final completion has been issued.  This page will be removed from the 
report next submission. 

Anticipated work over the 
next two weeks: 

 

Upcoming Tasks:  

Outstanding Issues:  

-------------------------- 

Design Schedule: Open Bids 27 October 
Award Nov 9 
Sign Agreements Nov 23 
Start limited construction activities (weather permitting) February 28 
Substantial completion June 2022

Schedule Constraints:  

Projected Completion:  

Approved Budget: $68,000 

Invoiced To Date: $68,000 

Balance to Complete: $0 

-------------------------- 

 Town Input Required:  

Issues Town Should Be Aware Of:   

 

Construction Contract Price: $567,374.00+$24,478 (CO #1) 

Current Paid:  $591,852 

Balance to Finish plus retainage:  $0 

 

199



Town of Altavista Projects 

Status Report - Peed & Bortz, LLC 

1 July 2022 

Project Name: WWTP Aeration System 

Project Manager:  Keith Lane, PE 

Sub-Consultant Masters Engineers 

P&B Job Number 19-75 

 

 

Recent Activities: Engineer met w/ staff on 9 July to discuss details of the project.  
Engineer is investigation potential for EDA or CARES funding for this 
project.  Engineers will revise the PH II/III contract to omit wiring and 
the backboard for the aerators.  This work will be added to the Aerator 
project since this project has been pushed back another year.  Engineers 
will coordinate to terminate the electrical service and the layout for the 
MCCs w/ the Ph II project.

Anticipated work over the 
next two weeks: 

 

Upcoming Tasks:  

Outstanding Issues:  

-------------------------- 

Design Schedule: TBD Complete design plans and specs 
TBD Advertise for Bids (if Town desires)

Schedule Constraints: Town staff has indicated this project bid may slip in order to coincide 
with WWTP Electrical upgrades 
See note below regarding potential schedule adjustment. 

Projected Completion: 31 October 2021 

Approved Budget: $198,000 

Invoiced To Date: $19,200 

Balance to Complete: $178,800 

-------------------------- 

 Town Input Required:  

Issues Town Should Be Aware Of:  The schedule for this project has been adjusted to coincide with 
the Phase III portion of the overall WWTP electrical 
improvements.  It will be beneficial to have the bulk of the PH 
III electrical work designed prior to in-depth design of the 
aerator work.   The design schedule above has been adjusted to 
reflect delay of the design such that the bulk of the PH III 
design is completed for coordination purposes.  

Town and Engineers will need to coordinate the design 
construction timing in conjunction with Town’s funding 
schedule.   

 

Construction Contract Price: $0 

  

200



Town of Altavista Projects 

Status Report - Peed & Bortz, LLC 

1 July 2022 

Project Name: WWTP Phase II/III Electrical Upgrades 

Project Manager:  Scott Bortz, PE 

Sub-Consultant Grant Beasley, PE – Master Engineers 

P&B Job Number 19-34 

-------------------------- 

Recent Activities: The electrical sub-contractor has de-mobilized until the resolution of the 
Dominion/Eaton testing procedure is finalized and the main service can 
be reconnected.  

Anticipated work over the 
next two weeks: 

 

Upcoming Tasks: Awaiting test procedure writeup from Eaton to present to Dominion. 

Outstanding Issues: Starters for remaining 2 MCCs may be delayed significantly  

-------------------------- 

Design Schedule: October 2020 Sign agreement 
November 2020 Notice to Proceed

Schedule Constraints: Contractor reports to be still on schedule for completion per contract 
times.  

Projected Completion: November 2022 

Approved Budget: $309,730 (combined II and III projects including CA)  

Change Order #1 = $2958.54 
Change Order #2 = $3942.13 + $6630 Special Inspections 

Invoiced To Date: $246,533 

Balance to Complete: $61,355 + additional inspection 

-------------------------- 

 Town Input Required:  

Issues Town Should Be Aware Of:  Final 1 MCC was due to be shipped May 1.  The exact delay 
cannot be determined at this time but Contractor will update all 
when able to determine. Dominion has requested a revised 
testing procedure that requires an additional relay and 
reprogramming at the ATS. Contractor will document all delays 
due to these issues.  

 

Construction Contract Price: $3,952,000 + $29,149 (Change Orders) 

Current Paid:  $3,013,284 

Balance to Finish plus retainage:  $942,329 

  

201



Town of Altavista Projects 

Status Report - Peed & Bortz, LLC 

1 July 2022 

Project Name: WTP Filter Rehabilitation  

Project Manager:  Russell Jackson, PE 

Sub-Consultant  

P&B Job Number 19-76 

 

Recent Activities: Engineer has received payment application #4 and #5 sent to the Owner 
for processing.  Contractor has started working on the electrical portion 
of the work.  Electrical rough-in has been completed.   

Anticipated work over the 
next two weeks: 

Commence valve replacement at the WTP 
 

Upcoming Tasks:  

Outstanding Issues:  

-------------------------- 

Design Schedule: January 2021 Documents to VDH for review 
March 2020 (60 days) Receive VDH approval 
June 2021 Advertise for Bids (if Town desires) 
July 2021 Open Bids 
27 July 2021 Council approval  
10 August 2021 Consent agenda approval 
1 November 2021 NTP

Schedule Constraints:  

Projected Completion: TBD 

Approved Budget: $56,000 

Invoiced To Date: $38,000 

Balance to Complete: $18,000 

-------------------------- 

 Town Input Required:  

Issues Town Should Be Aware Of:     

Construction Contract Price: $725,305 

Current Paid:  $375,452 

Balance to Finish plus retainage:  $360,415 

 
  

202



 

 
 701 1st St. S.W.  ●  Roanoke, VA 24016 

(540) 345-9342  ●  Fax (540) 345-7691 
www.matternandcraig.com 

Randy W. Beckner 
Bradley C. Craig 
Wm. Thomas Austin 
James B. Voso 
Chad M. Thomas 
Jason A. Carder 
Brian R. Newman 

Edwin K. Mattern, Jr. (1949-1982) 
Gene R. Cress (1935-2014) 

Sam H. McGhee, III (1940-2018) 
Stewart W. Hubbell (Retired) 

J. Wayne Craig (Retired) 
Michael S. Agee (Retired) 

Steven A. Campbell (Retired) 
Randy L. Dodson (Retired) 

 

C:\Users\ehw\Desktop\Bi-weekly report (07.05.22) Letterhead.docx 

July 5, 2022 
 

This memo is a status report of Mattern & Craig Team’s efforts for the Melinda Tank Pressure Zone 
Improvements Project 
 
Completed Work Over the Last 2 Weeks 
1. Contractor is continuing to work on the pump station (electrical, HVAC, & site). 
2. AC units installed. 
Anticipated Work Over the Next 2 Weeks 
1. Contractor to continue work on the job site and HVAC/Electrical at the pump station. 
Scope Changes to Date 
1. Waterline was shortened by approximately 300 LF on Avondale Drive. 
2. VFD enclosures changed from NEMA 12 to NEMA 3R. 
Outstanding Issues 
1. Coordination of the controls and pump station equipment.  
2. Some SCADA parts are on back order. AIC will update when they arrive. 
3. Replace Juniper bushes in 3 different areas. 
4. Delivery times of VFD and other pump station equipment. 
Construction Document Schedule Update 
1. Notice to Proceed (9/27/2021) 
2. Substantial Completion (1/25/2022) 
3. Completion (2/24/2022) 
Budget Summary 
1.  

Engineer’s Estimate: $1,084,240.00 
Town’s Budget $926,000.00 
Actual Construction Cost & Engineering $1,226,972.71 

2.  
Engineering Bid, CA & SCADA Contract $70,920.00 
JTD $47,504.50 

3.  
Construction Contract $1,226,972.71 
JTD $877,790.22 

 
Input Needed from Town/Others 
1. Discrepancies between plans/specifications and Town standards continue to be coordinated. M&C keeping 
list for updates to Town standards at conclusion of project.  
Other Issues/Concerns 
1. Progress Meeting #5 scheduled for 8/9/22 at 10:00 AM. 
 
Submitted by: 

 
Ryan P. Kincer, P.E. 
Project Manager 

203

http://www.matternandcraig.com/


TO: Town Manager

FROM: Polly Brown

DEPARTMENT: Water Treatment Plant

MONTH: June 2022

Operation and Production Summary 

The Actual water production line ( filtering of water) for the entire month averaged 17.43 Hours per day

which yielded approximately 1,906,810 gallons of water per day.

Rain YTD Rain 18.986 Snow 0 YTD Snow 0  was measured at the water treatment plant.

Average Hours per day (week days) 108.4 hrs

Average Hours per day (weekends) 14.8 hrs

Average produced (week days) 2,032,909 gallons per day

Average produced (weekends) 1,559,500 gallons per day

Total Raw Water Pumped: 56.840 million gallons

Total Drinking Water Produced: 57.200 million gallons

Average Daily Production: (drinking) 1,879,806 gallons per day

Average percent of Production Capacity: 62.66 %

Plant Process Water: 405,595 (finished water used by the plant)

Bulk Water Sold @ WTP: 82,800 gallons 

Flushing of Hydrants/Tanks/FD use/Town Use 2,800 gallons

McMinnis Spring 

Total Water Pumped: 7.825 million gallons average hours per day 13.5

Average Daily Produced: 260,833 gallons per day 1.50 YTD Rain 19.94

Reynolds Spring snow 0 5

Total Water Pumped: 8.934 million gallons average hours per day 16.8 Total Precip 24.94

Average  Daily Produced: 2,978,000 gallons per day 3.63 YTD Rain 22.45

Purchased Water from CCUSA 3,674,176 gallons snow 0 5

Sold to Hurt 2,687,000 gallons Total Precip 27.45

Industrial Use 51,112,381

Water lost due to leaks

Comments: Water Plant Activities & CIP Projects:

Monthly Compliance Reports Completed

VDH samples completed for compliance 

Melinda High Pressure Zone-   Pump station installation continues, landscaping around building with, minor HVAC, electrical work done. 

Weed eat, cut down and spray vegetation at McMinnis Spring, Clarion Tank, and Dearing Ford Tank ongoing

Filter Upgrade - Some valves and accuators delivered, the SCADA components are stored and being programmed. Electrical conduit runs being done.

The Source Water Protection Local Advisory Committee met and created next steps prior to a meeting scheduled in July

Generator project, Punch list being reviewed with completion scheduled this month

Town of Hurt  DBP improvement project. Had a meter failure that needs to be corrected. Sodium Hypo system currently being installed 95% completed

Replace SCADA computers (Completed)

Clarion Road water line, project   (Completed)

Springs SCADA project - draft plans received and comments were sent back to engineer, staff met with engineer on 5-31-22 to review outstanding concerns

Cleaned Basin #4 and #5
HACH  Quarterly Service

Sedimentation Basin Project Application sent to VDH in April awaiting notification 

Monthly Staff Report Water Plant

gallons

Rain at MC

Rain at RE

522,000

204



# of Service Connections 0 Addresses:

# of Service Taps 0 Addresses:

# of Meters Read 103 Monthly Rereads 2

1,719 Quarterly 33

# of Meters Cut Off For Non-Payment 0

# of Meters Tested 0

# of Loads  of Sludge to Landfill 19.00

153.42 Tons

# of Location Marks made for Miss Utility 36

# of Meters Replaced 0

# of Water Lines Repaired 3 # of Sewer Lines Unstopped 3

Locations: Locations:

1339 Tardy Mountain Road (Main) 905 16th Street (Service)

96 Gibson Road (Service) 1707 Eudora Lane (Service)

Pittsylvania Avenue (Main) 1100 5th Street (Service)

# Air Relief Valves Inspected 0

# of PRV Maintenance/Inspection 0

# of Water Valve Boxes Cleaned 1

# of Blow-Off Valves Flushed 0

# of Blow-Off Valves Located 0

Push Camera Footage 0 Sewer Main Cleaned 20'

Sewer (Root Cutting) Main 0 Sewer Main Cleaned Manholes 0

Sewer (Root Cutting)Main Manholes 0 Sewer Service Cleaned 0

Sewer Video Footage 0 Sewer Service Video 0

Sewer Video Manholes 0 Sewer (Root Cutting) Service 0

Duke Root Control (Contractor) 5125' Sewer Right of Way Clearing Footage 0

Water Turn On and Offs 23 Sewer Manholes Inspected 0

Water Right of Way Clearing Footage 0 Sewer Installed Clean Out 0

Water Meter Box Replacement 2

# Of Hydrants Flushed 0

# of Hydrant Valves Exercised 0

Other Utilities Distribution and Collection Activities & CIP Projects:

Lynch Creek Project

Clarion Road Project Completed

Obtaining Meter Informatin For AMI

Utilities Distribution and Collection

205



DEPARTMENT: Wasterwater Plant

MONTH: June-22

Average Daily Flow 1.90 MGD

TSS Reduction 97 %

BOD Reduction 96 %

VPDES Violations 0

Sludge ( Regional Land Fill) 161 tons

Rain Total 2.80 Inches Snow Total Inches

Other Wastewater Activities and CIP Projects:

Month:  June Month:  June

Week:  June 6th, 2022 Week:  June 13th, 2022

    

•         Continue Sanitizing procedures for commonly used areas •         Continue Sanitizing procedures for commonly used areas

•         Cont. Effluent meter reading from river meter   •         Cont. Effluent meter reading from river meter   

•         Cleaning storage areas of facility •         Cleaning storage areas of facility

•         Reviewed and submitted timesheets •         Ordered lab equipment  (DO and BOD meters)

•         Lab ceiling leaking from construction •         Lab ceiling leaking from construction

•         Replaced drum on small thickener after repair •         Conducted Semi-Annual Industrial Monitoring

•         Ordered Semi-Annual Industrial Monitoring containers •         Soda Ash received 6-14-22

•         Submitted DMR •         UV system Checks

•         Submitted Industrial Billing •         UV bank A in lead           

•         UV system Checks •         Entered Lab data

•         Polymer Delivered 6-7-22  (2 totes) •         Normal Plant Operations

•         Annual PT samples completed and entered           

•         Entered Lab data

•         Normal Plant Operations

Month:  June Month:  June

Week:  June 20th, 2022 Week:  June 27th, 2022

    

•         Continue Sanitizing procedures for commonly used areas   •         Continue Sanitizing procedures for commonly used areas   

•         Serviced UV system Bank B •         Lab ceiling leaking from construction

•         Lab ceiling leaking from construction •         Completing CIP items

•         Troubleshooting Effluent Meter totalizer on meter control panel •         Shop Roll up door replaced

•         Troubleshooting Influent Meter totalizer on meter control panel •         Employee Lounge Mini-Split repaired

•         Power outage 6-23-22    (approx.. 3pm- 4:15pm) •         Serviced Main Pump Station Bar Screen

•         Replace air compressor at Main Pump Station •         Removed weeds from around and in Basin #2

•         UV system Checks •         Sent Night shift employees on short wastewater school   

•         UV bank B in lead           •         UV system Checks

•         Entered Lab data •         UV bank B in lead           

•         Normal Plant Operations •         Entered Lab data

•         Normal Plant Operations

 

206



2021-2022 Water, Sewer & Curbside Refuse Collection Billing History Printed 7-Jul-22

 Customer Class July-21 August September-21 October-22 November-22 December-22 January-22 February-22 March-22 April-22 May-22 June-22

Average

Residential Base-IT 1,280                 8                        10                      1,348                 3                        19                      1,318                 9                        10                      1,353                 26                      13                          450                    

Commercial Base-IT 155                    43                      43                      203                    43                      44                      187                    45                      43                      218                    24                      13                          88                      

Residential Base-OT 135                    4                        2                        150                      -       -     96                       -    -   151                    -                    -                         67                      

Commercial Base-OT 1                        1                        1                        1                        1                        1                        1                        1                        1                        1                        1                        1                            1                        

Municipal 31                      30                      31                      31                      31                      31                      31                      31                      31                      31                      31                      31                          31                      

Dormant Accounts -

Industrial 5                        5                        5                        5                        5                        5                        5                        5                        5                        5                        5                        5                            5                        

TOTAL 1,607                 91                      92                      1,590                 83                      100                    1,638                 91                      90                      1,759                 1,759                 642                    

Total

Residential Use-IT 11,526,297        53,460               40,240               15,304,832        3,050                 118,530             14,745,412        20,990               253,440             13,858,847        186,130             72,320                   56,183,548        

Commercial Use-IT 2,080,326          2,922,805          3,394,317          6,521,283          2,777,029          2,606,630          4,553,319          2,622,220          3,214,810          4,384,976          1,113,970          1,520,590              37,712,275        

Residential Use-OT 1,622,205          45,400               17,160               2,022,235            -       -     1,099,074           -    -   1,657,858          -                    -                         6,463,932          

Commercial Use-OT 2,450,500          2,607,400          2,755,900          2,549,200          2,649,600          2,743,000          2,646,800          2,425,000          2,425,000          2,380,000          2,380,000          2,424,500              30,436,900        

Municipal 651,040             560,420             685,930             576,600             430,420             485,540             252,200             317,880             317,880             328,450             386,750             444,060                 5,437,170          

Industrial 45,581,047        38,667,583        20,355,918        44,497,366        46,844,127        39,830,252        47,348,727        41,890,355        39,401,090        45,809,047        42,484,361        42,841,404            495,551,277      

TOTAL WATER SOLD 63,911,415        44,857,068        27,249,465        69,466,441        52,704,226        45,783,952        69,546,458        47,276,445        45,612,220        68,419,178        46,551,211        47,302,874            631,785,102      

NET DELIVERED 55,547,791        62,033,286        67,902,352        62,363,388        56,493,868        54,898,806        58,545,251        53,441,639        59,466,715        61,597,331        68,238,729        56,394,184            716,923,340      

FRACTION BILLED 115% 72% 40% 111% 93% 83% 119% 88% 77% 111% 68% 69% 88%

Total ( TOA,sold,hydrnts, Leaks) 62,000               103,550             49,670               42,800               47,800               297,400             127,423             25,100               21,300               18,700               87,400               607,600                 1,490,743          

Total

Residential Base & Use-IT 61,884               359                    392                    68,403               100                    802                    62,917               321                    1,053                 64,401               1,364                 556                        262,553             

Commercial Base & Use-IT 18,017               9,955                 11,248               26,738               9,552                 9,122                 19,514               9,926                 11,629               21,423               4,036                 5,684                     156,845             

Residential Base & Use-OT 11,826               349                    161                    11,004                 -       -     9,367                  -   16,115               -                    -                         48,821               

Commercial Base & Use-OT 10,283               10,931               11,544               10,691               11,105               11,491               12,153               11,148               11,148               10,944               10,944               1,145                     123,528             

Municipal -                    -                    -                     -     -       -      -    -    -    -   -                    -                         -                     

 -   -                     

Industrial 124,043             105,868             55,844               121,128             168,364             108,847             128,939             125,425             118,494             124,703             127,184             128,241                 1,437,080          

TOTAL 226,054             127,462             79,189               227,120             189,121             130,262             223,523             146,820             142,323             237,586             143,528             135,626                 2,028,826          

Average

Residential Base-IT 1,130                 7                        7                        1,181                 3                        18                      1,155                 5                        9                        1,191                 23                      13                          395                    

Commercial Base-IT 121                    32                      41                      185                    42                      43                      150                    43                      40                      152                    24                      14                          74                      

Commercial Base-OT 7                        7                        7                        7                        7                        7                        7                        7                        7                        7                        7                        7                            7                        

Municipal 8                        8                        8                        8                        8                        8                        8                        8                        8                        8                        8                        8                            

Dormant Accounts  -   -

Industrial 4                        4                        4                        4                        4                        4                        4                        4                        4                        4                        4                        4                            4                        

TOTAL 1,270                 58                      67                      1,385                 64                      80                      1,324                 67                      68                      1,362                 66                      46                          480                    

Total

Residential Use-IT 9,083,613          31,528               26,902               8,868,726          2,710                 88,689               9,334,889          9,183                 14,518               9,095,743          118,544             61,523                   36,736,568        

Commercial Use-IT 2,360,920          1,810,475          1,926,850          4,018,073          1,568,661          1,470,927          3,313,277          1,501,219          2,215,820          3,230,757          903,250             743,836                 25,064,065        

Commercial Use-OT 260,328             247,744             265,236             81,500               253,596             266,444             205,521             174,992             2,425,000          182,450             277,036             209,250                 4,849,097          

Municipal 127,300             116,460             101,070             215,810             103,660             92,690               157,333             94,850               94,850               133,980             128,330             126,123                 

Industrial 40,660,000        32,970,000        38,740,000        42,750,000        45,410,000        34,410,000        42,206,667        39,540,000        37,420,000        41,872,222        40,490,000        39,830,556            476,299,445      

TOTAL SEWER BILLED 52,492,161        35,176,207        41,060,058        55,934,109        47,338,627        36,328,750        55,217,687        41,320,244        42,170,188        54,515,152        41,917,159        40,971,288            542,949,174      

WWTP EFFLUENT 55,650,700        59,575,900        57,870,800        57,454,200        49,784,700        47,751,600        53,405,500        50,369,700        57,782,200        57,742,300        59,036,500        57,073,002            663,497,102      

FRACTION BILLED 94% 59% 71% 97% 95% 76% 103% 82% 73% 94% 71% 72% 82%

Residential Base & Use-IT 31,791               119                    116                    38,787               17                      337                    34,970               57                      83                      35,183               462                    241                        11,847               

Commercial Base & Use-IT 5,154                 13,130               6,659                 14,001               5,427                 5,092                 13,053               5,470                 8,054                 10,736               3,285                 2,719                     7,732                 

Commercial Base & Use-OT 2,638                 1,337                 1,530                 666                    1,501                 1,172                 1,493                 991                    1,629                 1,599                 1,802                 1,290                     1,471                 

Municipal -                    -                    -                     -     -       -      -    -    -    -   -                    

Industrial 138,244             112,564             23,780               151,646             160,955             123,148             145,916             147,893             140,304             145,269             151,278             167,795                 1,608,792          

TOTAL 177,827             127,150             32,084               205,100             167,900             129,749             195,432             154,411             150,069             192,787             156,828             172,045                 1,629,841          

Average

Curbside-IT STOPS

  Curbside - Brush 244                    167                    134                    127                    85                      72                      43                      67                      167                    192                    108                    124                        155                    

Curbside- BULK 104                    131                    113                    87                      102                    75                      63                      46                      58                      117                    106                    127                        85                      

TOTAL 348                    298                    247                    214                    187                    147                    106                    113                    225                    309                    214                    251                        240                    

Total

Curbside-IT 98                      94                      113                    87                      85                      110                    84                      83                      110                    91                      102                    106                        1,096                 

Curbside-BULK 18                      20                      11                      10                      13                      9                        6                        6                        14                      12                      16                      16                          153                    

TOTAL 116                    114                    124                    525                    472                    413                    302                    315                    574                    721                    546                    624                        1,249                 

 W
A

T
E

R
 

 S
E

W
E

R
 

 C
U

R
B

S
ID

E
  

  
  

  
  

 

207



  Town of Altavista  
Hurt and Proffitt Projects 

Status Report  
 

 

 
Date: July 7, 2022 
 
This memo is a status report of Hurt & Proffitt Team’s efforts for the  
AMI Water Metering System 
 
Completed Work Over the Last Week 
1. Received information back from the Town & Ron Lilley (Badge Meter) regarding the survey 

of all the large meters within the Town and recommendations to be included in the RFP.  
 

Anticipated Work Over the Next two Weeks 
1. Work on getting items included in the RFP per the email dated 6/28 from Ron Lilley. 

 
Outstanding Issues 
1. None at this time 

 
Construction Schedule Update 
1. Not applicable at this time 

 
Budget Summary 
1. Bid Assistance   Contract: $12,500 JTD: $1,650 
2. Construction Administration Contract: $15,000 JTD: $0 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Chad Hodges, PE 
Asst. Project Manager 

208



  Town of Altavista  
Hurt and Proffitt Projects 

Status Report  
 

 

 
Date: July 7, 2022 
 
This memo is a status report of Hurt & Proffitt Team’s efforts for the Lynch Creek Sewer Project 
 
Completed Work Over the Last Week 
1. Conducted progress meeting on 6/22/22 
2. Submitted pay request #3 to Town from Contractor.  
3. Approved and sent out executed Change Order #1 regarding CIPP.  
4. West Road crossing has been completed.  

 
Anticipated Work Over the Next two Weeks 
1. Start cutting the parking lot for Shreve Park for sewer installation. 
2. Message board will be placed notifying public about parking lot disturbance.   
3. Start working on 7th Street at night on 7/17/22 and reverse lay sewer to the railroad. 
4. Once they reach the creek, stone will be brought in from 10th Street.  
 
Outstanding Issues 
1. Corner drain on Franklin and 10th Street was stopped up and flooded the street. 
2. The crossing at the creek at the end of 10th Street has started to wash out.  

 
Construction Schedule Update 
1. Begin construction on April 11, 2022 
2. Final completion is scheduled for May 2023. 
 
Budget Summary 
1. CCTV Inspection and Video Contract: $35,000 JTD: $25,000 
2. Manhole Inspection  Contract: $5,000  JTD: $5,000 
3. Sewer Line Route Survey  Contract:  $17,500 JTD: $17,500 
4. Sewer Line Design  Contract: $44,720 JTD: $44,720 
5. Railroad Permit Coordination Contract: $3,630  JTD: $3,630 
6. Bid Assistance   Contract: $4,460  JTD: $4,460 
7. Construction Administration Contract: $18,900 JTD: $6,280 
 
Construction Cost Summary: 
1. Lynch Creek Sewer Replacement  Contract: $2,229,500 JTD: $723,211 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Chad Hodges, PE 
Asst. Project Manager 

209



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 10.C
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Title: Public Services Monthly Reports
Staff Resource: Teri Anderson
 

Action(s):

For Review

Explanation:

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. FLEET MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT-JUNE 2022
Attachment 2. BUILDINGS_AND_GROUNDS_MONTHLY_REPORT_JUNE_2022
Attachment 3. STREET_DEPARTMENT_MONTHLY_REPORT-_JUNE_2022

210

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1455894/FLEET_MAINTENANCE_DEPARTMENT-JUNE_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1455895/BUILDINGS_AND_GROUNDS_MONTHLY_REPORT_JUNE_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1455896/STREET_DEPARTMENT_MONTHLY_REPORT-_JUNE_2022_.pdf


FLEET MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

DATE: JULY 6, 2022

TO:          TOWN MANAGER
FROM:    TERRY LAMBERT, FLEET SUPERVISOR

MONTH: JUNE 2022

DESCRIPTION
Labor 
Hours

Vacation / Comp. Time Used 8
Safety Meetings/Training 15
Holiday 0
Daily/ Weekly/ Planning & Scheduling 42.75
Sick Leave Used 27.75
CIP / Budgeting / Calling Vendors 23.50
Preventive Maintenance 119.25
General Repair’s 29
Troubleshoot and Diagnostic 27.75
Fabrication 0.25
Tire Changes & Repairs 4
Picking Up & Delivery 8
Building & Grounds 4.50
DMV/Titling 0
Inspections/Surplus 31.50
Inventory Restocking       2.50
General Maintenance 8.25

Total Labor Hours for the Month 352

211



                                                       BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS
JULY 6, 2022

TO:          TOWN MANAGER
FROM:    BRIAN ROACH, B&G SUPERVISOR
MONTH: JUNE 2022

Vacation / Comp. Time Used / Sick Leave Taken 168
Meetings / Data Entry / Work Planning / Training 58.50
# Of Call Duty Hours 48.50
# Of Assisting other Crews 30
Holiday 0
Green Hill Cemetery

DESCRIPTION
Month 
Totals

Labor 
Hours

# Of Burials / Cremations 3 31.25
Cemetery Grounds Maintenance 7.25
Meeting with Families / Selling Plots 0
Stone Locating / Setting 0
Maintain Cemetery Records 0

Solid Waste Collection

DESCRIPTION
Month 
Totals

Labor 
Hours

Residential Garbage Collected (Tonnage) 105.57 96.50
Residential Garbage Collected (Tonnage) Town of Hurt 38.68 32
# Of Curbside Brush Collected (Stops) 124 38.50
Loads of Brush Collected 16
# Of Curbside Bulk Collected (Stops) 127 27.50
Bulk Collection (Tonnage)   16.29
# Of Tires Collected 15 3
# Of Residential Garbage Citations Issued 0 0

Parks/Buildings

DESCRIPTION
Month 
Totals

Labor 
Hours

Landscaping Buildings, Watering Flowers, Irrigation 6
# Of Building Maintenance Hours 27
# Of Park Cleaning 114.50
# Of Parks Ground Maintenance Hours 110.50
# Of Acres Mowed by Town 222.79 134.75
# Of Acres Mowed by Contractors **** 16.50 0
Special Projects / Special Event 0
# Of Vehicle Maintenance Hours 13
# Of Weed Control (0 Gallons) 0
*** HOURS NOT ADDED

Total Labors Hours for the Month 946.75

212



213



STREET DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT

DATE: JULY 6, 2022

TO:         TOWN MANAGER
FROM:   CHUCK NEWMAN, STREETS SUPERVISOR   

MONTH: JUNE 2022

DESCRIPTION Labor Hours

Vacation / Comp. Time Taken / Sick Leave Taken / Funeral Leave 69
Holiday 0

Safety Meetings/Data Entry/Planning Schedule/Inventory
79.50

Weekend Truck (.76 Tons) 8.50
Street Sweeping (Miles Swept Main St. and Bedford Ave. 0 / Town Wide 0) 0
Litter Control (Bags Collected 8) 6

Assisting Other Crews 189
Town Wide Mowing (55.71 Miles) 206.75
Contractor Mowing (0 Miles) 0
Signage 0
Shoulder Stone 0
Ditch & Drainage Pipe Maintenance (11.43 Stone Tons) 24.25
Weed Control (Gallons Sprayed 78) 18
Street Lighting 1
Dead Animal Removal/Buzzard Control 9
Decorative Street Light 13.75
Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance 26.50
Public Works Lot Cleaning 4
Trees/ Trimming/ Removal 47.75
House Demo (Landfill Debris 78.51 Tons) 39.25
Call Duty 1.50
Asphalt Maintenance 5.50
Storm Damage Cleanup 20.25
Special Projects / Special Events / Seasonal 0

Total Labor Hours for the Month 769.50

214



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 10.D
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Title: Community Development Monthly Report
Staff Resource: Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director
 

Action(s):

Accept Report

Explanation:

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment. CD June 2022 Monthly Report

215

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1461060/CD_June_2022_Monthly_Report.pdf


 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To:  Gary Shanaberger, Town Manager 
 

From: Sharon D. Williams, AICP – Community Development Director SDW 
 
Date:  July 5, 2022 
 
Re: June 2022 Community Development Report 
              

 
Permits 

Three (3) permits were applied for during the month of June: 
  

Home Occupations:  0 
New Business: 503 7th St new salon 
Signs: 1 – Riverside Cleaners 
Accessory Structures: 1 
New Homes or Additions: 0 
 
Violations 

Seven (7) new violations were reported in June and three (9) were abated. Staff is 

working on eighteen (18) active violations. The majority of new complaints are related to 

high weeds and public nuisances.   

 

Planning Commission: 

The Planning Commission continues its work on the Comprehensive Plan update with a 

discussion of housing goals and objectives. 

Staff provided draft language to the Planning Commission about the omission of heights 

for accessory structures/flagpoles in the commercial and industrial zoning districts. 

They were informed that DAWN, Inc had submitted an application for a Special Use 
Permit to operate a food pantry at 717 7th St and a Public Hearing would be held at the 
July meeting. 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals: 

The Board of Zoning Appeals did not meet in May. 
 
Recreation Committee: 

The Recreation Committee did not meet for lack of a quorum.  

216



Altavista On Track: 

AOT continued preparing for the Vista BBQ Festival at English Park on October 1, 2022. 

Altavista On Track and the Town executed the Memorandum of Understanding between 

the Town and AOT and the employment contract for AOT’s Executive Director. 

 
Staff Projects/Meetings: 

Renovations were completed on the Spark Innovation Center. The Design Team 

conducted a final walkthrough and produced a 29-page punch list of items that needed 

to be addressed. Piney Ridge came back to correct the deficiencies and a final 

walkthrough is scheduled for July 12, 2022. The keys to the building were turned over to 

staff on June 29th.  

The Community Development Director continues to work on the GIS and online 

permitting system for the town. 

At the request of Town Council staff met with River Street Networks to discuss the 

possibility of connecting Town Hall’s internet to the Spark Innovation Center to eliminate 

the Town’s $400± a month Comcast bill. They all met with ITG to discuss access and 

firewall concerns and monitoring of the security system.  ITG is contacting River City 

and River Street Networks on the Town’s behalf and an update will be provided to Town 

Council later. 

Cardno, the town’s environmental consultant, completed a Phase I Environmental 

Assessment for DAWN, Inc on the former Moorefield Cleaners located at 717 7th St, 

funded by the Virginia Brownfields Restoration and Economic Redevelopment 

Assistance Fund.  

Town staff met with the Promotions Committee of Altavista On Track (AOT) to discuss 

the logistics for the BBQ Festival. 

The Community Development Director completed the grant reporting for the USDA 

Rural Business Development Grant for the $100,000 the town received to purchase 

furniture, fixtures, and equipment for the Spark Innovation Center. The town will need to 

amend its final report once the center opens. It will also need to file an amended report 

and two (2) more annual reports for the $184,306 received from the Tobacco Region 

Revitalization Commission. 

The Design Team has completed 95% of the plans for the Vista Theater roof. Master 

Engineers & Designers have requested to gain access to the interior and will inspect it 

in July.  There are some concerns about the ability of the roof to support the HVAC 

system. 

The Town, Altavista on Track and Chamber of Commerce hosted a ribbon cutting for 

Perfect Canvas Salon at 613 Broad St. Kaitlin Smith was a recipient of AOT’s 

Downtown Business Investment Grant and the Altavista Advantage loan program. 

217



Public nuisance violation notices were issued to three (3) properties on Lynch Rd and 1 

on Bedford Avenue. 

The Community Development Director met with DAWN, Inc Board of Directors to 

discuss the Special Use Permit process, Phase I Environmental Assessment, 

renovations, and parking for the food pantry at 717 7th St. 

The Town assisted William Barnwell with a public nuisance violation by providing trucks 

to haul off the debris at 1700 Avondale Ave that was a result of a house fire. 

 

 

 

218



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 10.E
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Title: Altavista Police Department - Monthly Reports for June 2022
Staff Resource: APD Chief Tommy Merricks
 

Action(s):

Informational Item

Explanation:

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. APD Monthly Report-June 2022
Attachment 2. APD Patrol on 29-June 2022

219

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1459793/APD_Monthly_Report-June_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1459794/APD_Patrol_on_29-June_2022.pdf


2022 ALTAVISTA POLICE DEPT MONTHLY REPORT
January February March April May June Year to Date

Criminal Arrests "Felony" 7 0 4 4 9 5 29

Criminal Arrests "Misdemeandor" 23 15 8 14 17 14 91

Warrant Executed 20 10 11 16 19 18 94

Uniform Traffic Summons Issued 30 33 45 32 48 51 239

# Traffic Stops 70 115 145 99 132 114 675

BOLO'S (Be on Look Out) 4 5 9 3 16 3 40

DUI 0 1 0 2 4 2 9

IBR 22 28 10 18 32 18 128

MVA 6 14 7 10 10 9 56

Assist Motorist 14 4 6 9 12 22 67

Calls for Service 326 382 372 381 501 433 2,395

Alarm Responses 37 14 20 16 27 18 132

ECO/TDO 0 0 0 3 1 1 5

ECO/ TDO HOURS 0 0 0 7 3 10 20

Court Hours 2 13 3.5 5.5 3 2 29

Citizen Contacts 1,323 863 1525 1003 1732 609 7,055

Businesses, Residences Check "Foot Patrols" 147 92 90 149 223 458 1,159
Follow Ups 24 5 5 4 7 6 51

220



Patrol on 29-June 2022
Location Time Officer Disposition

1-Jun 29 NB/Clarion Rd 2029-2034 S.Earhart Traffic Stop-78/65
1-Jun 29 SB/Lynch Mill 0235-0242 S.Earhart Traffic Stop 83/65
3-Jun Rt 29 0203- Earhart Disabled Vehicle
3-Jun Rt 29 0205-0219 Pugh Disabled Vehicle
4-Jun Rt 29 0226- C.Earhart Traffic Stop 
4-Jun Rt 29/Bedford Ave 0134-0139 Pugh Traffic Stop
4-Jun Rt 29 0226-0231 Pugh Traffic Stop
4-Jun Rt 29 0315-0324 Pugh Traffic Stop
4-Jun Rt 29 1213-1222 Anthony Traffic Stop
5-Jun Rt 29 0051-0117 Pugh Traffic Stop
5-Jun Rt 29 0051- C.Earhart Traffic Stop
8-Jun Rt 29 2358-0010 S.Earhart Traffic Stop
8-Jun Rt 29/Lynch Mill Rd 2354-0009 Pugh Traffic Stop
9-Jun Rt 29 2214-2234 Pugh Traffic Stop

11-Jun Rt 29/Clarion Rd 1250-1257 S.Earhart Traffic Stop 83/65
12-Jun 29 SB/Bedford Ave 0017-0135 S.Earhart Traffic Stop 92/65
14-Jun 29 NB 1030-1034 Anthony Traffic Stop
17-Jun Rt 29 2208-2212 Pugh Traffic Stop
17-Jun Rt 29 0130-0140 Pugh Traffic Stop
17-Jun Rt 29 2208- C.Earhart Traffic Stop
17-Jun Rt 29 0150- C.Earhart Traffic Stop
18-Jun Rt 29 0100-0105 Pugh Traffic Stop
20-Jun Rt 29/Lynch Mill Rd 2318-2320 S.Earhart Traffic Stop
20-Jun Rt 29/Lynch Mill Rd 0003-0015 S.Earhart Traffic Stop
23-Jun 29 NB 0138- C.Earhart BOL
26-Jun 29 NB 0303-0338 C.Earhart Disabled Vehicle
27-Jun Rt 29/Clarion Rd 1557-1622 Anthony Traffic Stop
27-Jun Rt 29/Clarion Rd 1557-1622 Smith Traffic Stop
28-Jun Rt 29/Clarion Rd 1057-1109 Smith Traffic Stop
28-Jun Rt 29 0057-0135 Pugh Traffic Stop
28-Jun Rt 29 0137-0155 Pugh Traffic Stop
28-Jun Rt 29 0201-0208 Pugh Traffic Stop
28-Jun Rt 29 0057- C.Earhart Traffic Stop
28-Jun Rt 29 0136- C.Earhart Traffic Stop
28-Jun Rt 29 0201- C.Earhart Traffic Stop

221



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING
July 12, 2022

AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 10.F
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Title: Town Council Meeting Calendars - July & August
Staff Resource: Crystal Hailey, Assistant Town Clerk
 

Action(s):

Informational Item

Explanation:

Meeting Calendars for the months of July and August 2022

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

Attachment 1. Town Council Meeting Calendar - July 2022
Attachment 2. Town Council Meeting Calendar - August 2022

222

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460010/Town_Council_Meeting_Calendar_-_July_2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1460011/Council_Calendar_-_August_2022.pdf


                        JULY  2022 
 

           Sunday    Monday    Tuesday      Weds.   Thursday     Friday         Saturday 

     1 2 

3 4 
Town Offices 

CLOSED for 

Independence Day 

5 
Planning 

Commission 

5pm 

6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 
Town Council 
Meeting 6pm 

13 14 
 

AOT 
Meeting 5:15pm 

15 16 

17 18 19 
Recreation 

Committee Mtg. 

5:30pm 

20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 
Town Council 

Work Session 5pm 

27 28 29 
 

Chamber TGIF 

5:30-9pm 

30 

31  NOTE: 

AEDA Meeting 

July 26th at 8:15am 

    

 

223



                            AUGUST  2022 
 

Sunday         Monday      Tuesday  Weds.      Thursday           Friday      Saturday 

 1 
Planning 

Commission 

5:00pm 

2 
APD National 

 Night Out  
5:30-9:00pm 

3 4 5 6 

7 8 *  9 
 

Council Meeting 
7pm 

10 11 
 

AOT Meeting 

6pm 

12 13 

14 15 16 
Recreation 

Committee 

5:30pm 

17 18 19 20 

21 22 * 23 
 

Council 

Work Session 
5pm 

24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 
  NOTES: 

 
*August 9th 
  AVOCA 
  Member’s Picnic 

 
 
*August 23rd 
  AEDA Meeting 
  8:30am 

 

224


	Town Council Agenda
	2402 - Cover Page
	2402 - Attachment. JUNE 2022 New Hires, Departures, and Milestones
	2405 - Cover Page
	2406 - Cover Page
	2394 - Cover Page
	2394 - Attachment. Memo to Council:  FY2022 Budget Amendments/Dept. Transfers
	2395 - Cover Page
	2395 - Attachment 1.  June 2022 Check Register
	2395 - Attachment 2.  June 2022 Revenue Report
	2395 - Attachment 3.  June 2022 Expenditure Report
	2395 - Attachment 4.  June 2022_Reserve Balance / Investment Report
	2403 - Cover Page
	2403 - Attachment 1. Town Council RM 4.12.22
	2403 - Attachment 2. Town Council Work Session 4.26.22
	2403 - Attachment 3. Town Council RM 5.10.22
	2411 - Cover Page
	2415 - Cover Page
	2415 - Attachment. Resolution 6.28.22-Tardy property purchased for McMinnis Springs
	2414 - Cover Page
	2414 - Attachment. Resolution 6.28.22 - CCUSA Utilities
	2400 - Cover Page
	2400 - Attachment 1. Application Uncle Billy's Reunion 2023
	2400 - Attachment 2. T and C Promotions Uncle Billy's Budget 2023
	2401 - Cover Page
	2401 - Urban Archery Policy.pdf
	2413 - Cover Page
	2413 - Attachment. ARS Program (002)
	2409 - Cover Page
	2409 - Attachment. Fair Housing Certification
	2410 - Cover Page
	2410 - Attachment. Anti Displacement Certification
	2412 - Cover Page
	2412 - Attachment. Performance Pool Program Funds
	2416 - Cover Page
	2416 - ARS Program Pool.docx
	2407 - Cover Page
	2393 - Cover Page
	2393 - Attachment 1.  Meals Tax Report
	2393 - Attachment 2.  Sales Tax Report
	2393 - Attachment 3.  Lodging Tax Report
	2393 - Attachment 4.  Cigarette Tax Report
	2396 - Cover Page
	2396 - Attachment 1. 1-July-2022 Status Report
	2396 - Attachment 2. 1-July 22 Fraizer Drainage
	2396 - Attachment 3. 1 July 2022 Springs & PS SCADA
	2396 - Attachment 4. 1-July-22 Clarion Road Water Line Project
	2396 - Attachment 5. 1-July-2022 Aeration Study Status Report
	2396 - Attachment 6. 1-July-2022 WWTP Electrical Upgrade Status Report
	2396 - Attachment 7. 1-July-2022 WTP Filter Upgrade Status Report
	2396 - Attachment 8. 5 July-2022 Melinda HPZ status Report
	2396 - Attachment 9. June 2022 Monthly Report  for Council Members 1
	2396 - Attachment 10. June 2022 Monthly Report  for Council Members 2
	2396 - Attachment 11. AMI Water Metering Status Update 7-7-22
	2396 - Attachment 12. Lynch Creek Sewer Status Update 7-7-22
	2397 - Cover Page
	2397 - Attachment 1. FLEET MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT-JUNE 2022
	2397 - Attachment 2. BUILDINGS_AND_GROUNDS_MONTHLY_REPORT_JUNE_2022
	2397 - Attachment 3. STREET_DEPARTMENT_MONTHLY_REPORT-_JUNE_2022
	2398 - Cover Page
	2398 - Attachment. CD June 2022 Monthly Report
	2404 - Cover Page
	2404 - Attachment 1. APD Monthly Report-June 2022
	2404 - Attachment 2. APD Patrol on 29-June 2022
	2408 - Cover Page
	2408 - Attachment 1. Town Council Meeting Calendar - July 2022
	2408 - Attachment 2. Town Council Meeting Calendar - August 2022

